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Foreword

Welcome to our 2019/20 Annual Report and Accounts. CW+ had much to
celebrate this past year, with a range of events and launches, augmented by great
generosity and support from our community of donors and partners.

In 2020, we are proud to continue our legacy of charitable donation. In May 1719,
Henry Hoare donated £10 to establish the original Westminster Hospital, which
later became Chelsea and Westminster Hospital. In May 2019, we celebrated

the Hospital’s 300th anniversary with a service held at Westminster Abbey,
attended by MPs, current and former NHS staff, patients, supporters, dignitaries
and members of the Hoare family in honour of our founder donor. A permanent
heritage exhibition is also on display at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital to
commemorate the anniversary.

With the help of Cllr. Samia Chaudhary in her role as Mayor of Hounslow for
2018/19, we completed our Sun and Stars Appeal at West Middlesex University
Hospital. In April 2019, ClIr. Chaudhary officially opened a new playroom for our
younger patients which was delivered as a result.

In May, we were delighted to be chosen as charity of the year by The Worshipful
The Mayor of the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, Cllr. Will Pascall. With
support from the Mayor, we expanded our award-winning Arts for All programme
to create the Community Bridge programme, enabling us to reach out to mostly
older people, from hospital admission or outpatients attendance to their lives at
home within their communities.

In September 2019, we launched our CW Innovation programme, a joint venture
between Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and CW+,
designed to advance patient care, patient experience and operational efficiency
across our organisations through attracting, embedding and evaluating innovative
concepts in a real-world healthcare setting. With a dedicated team of Innovation
Business Partners at its core, CW Innovation has quickly established a pipeline of
over 70 programmes and a cohort of over a dozen strategic partners including
Sensyne Health, GE Healthcare and Samsung.

Phase 1 of our world-class Adult Intensive Care Unit (ICU) at Chelsea and
Westminster Hospital opened in March 2020, offering much more space and
comfort for patients, their families and staff, around twice the number of patient
beds, high windows in most rooms with a spectacular view over London, as well as
the latest in design and technology. The new ICU opened in time to accommodate
seriously ill COVID-19 patients during the crisis, with staff from other wards
redeployed to care for patients.

In addition, Phase 1 of our Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) also opened in
late Q1 2020. When complete, both ICU sites will be able to treat 2,000 critically
ill adults and babies each year, with three times the previous total number of
beds, thanks to generous donations towards our overall £12.5 million Critical Care
Campaign.



Then in Spring came COVID-19, a global pandemic and national crisis which
changed all our lives and the way the Trust and CW+ now operate. Healthcare
practitioners at our hospitals were confronted with a new reality, one that they
were not familiar with, but which required them to adapt quickly, often using
different methods of care in a constantly evolving and hugely challenging
environment.

To witness the compassion, skill and professionalism of our colleagues throughout
the outbreak has been both inspiring and humbling for all of us at the charity.

At CW+, we reacted by launching our COVID-19 Rapid Response Fund, inviting
donors to help our patients and staff during the crisis. We could not have
predicted such an overwhelming and heartwarming response. Thanks to the
generous financial support, or donations of food, clothes, accommodation and
other provisions given directly to the Trust, our communities helped to ensure that
our hospitals and staff had everything they needed to endure the pandemic. These
benefits also helped our dedicated staff provide the best possible care to patients,
in the most challenging of circumstances.

As the outbreak continues, there remains much uncertainty about both the
timescale and nature of the recovery ahead of us. However, thanks to the
continuing generosity and commitment of our supporters and partners and the
dedication and skill of our Trust colleagues, we are as prepared as we can be to
deal with the challenges and capture the opportunities that lie ahead of us in the
year to come.

Tony Bourne Chris Chaney
Chairman CEO, CW+



About CW+

Our Vision

To be recognised as leaders in the delivery of innovation in patient care, patient
experience and the hospital environment.

Our Mission

CWH+ is the official charity of Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust including its hospitals and clinics. Our generous supporters and partners
enable us to:

¢ Build and enhance clinical facilities to create an outstanding healing
environment for patients and staff

¢ Deliver a unique art and design programme to transform the experience and
wellbeing of our patients

¢ Invest in health innovation to deliver exceptional patient care

Our work would not be possible without the wonderful generosity of our
supporters, to whom we are immensely grateful.

Achievements, Performance and Impact

The report section to follow provides commentary on the year’s performance
against the 2017-2020 objectives. The strategy sets out clear goals for delivery
over three years. The Charity employs a balanced scorecard approach to ensure
we consider all aspects necessary for its success.

This encompasses:

¢ The activities we need to excel at to deliver impact for our beneficiaries
* Ensuring we have sufficient resources to meet our aims

¢ The areas we need to develop or invest in to excel

This report sets out our goals under these headings and provides a commentary
on achievements, performance and impact.




Delivering Impact for our Beneficiaries
There were three key areas of focus for our activities:

1. Fundraising and the Critical Care Campaign
2. Patient environment and experience
3. Grants and innovation

1. Fundraising and the Critical Care Campaign

The Charity aims to be the principal provider and coordinator of capital and
revenue fundraising for the Trust. Our goal was to generate a minimum of
£4.240m in fundraised income at a 4:1 income to cost ratio.

The Charity came close to achieving this, having raised a total of £4.166m. We are
pleased to report that the income was delivered at an income-to-cost ratio of 4:1.

A further £363,000 has been committed by way of pledges of financial support
from donors which will be receivable over the next three years.

Central to our fundraising strategy since 2017 was our £12.5m campaign to expand
and redevelop the Adult Intensive Care Unit (ICU) and Neonatal Intensive Care
Unit (NICU) at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital (CWH) by 2020. Construction
began in July 2018 and we were delighted to achieve our fundraising target after
just two years.

The year 2019-2020 was focused on preparing for our next major appeals and
towards the end, we turned our efforts to responding to the COVID-19 pandemic
and to the changing needs of the Trust.

We also achieved our additional fundraising target of £50,000 for our Sun and
Stars Appeal at West Middlesex University Hospital.

We would like to extend our thanks to all those who have supported us
throughout the past year, without whom none of our work would be possible.




WPE8 TJZ




2. Patient Environment and Experience - Art and Design

The Charity aims to be the leading evidence-based arts in health practitioner,
combining digital, visual and performing arts with innovative design, to transform
the patient environment and experience. Some of our projects from 2019/20 are
explained below.

Arts for All

In April 2019 we launched the new Arts for All programme, which brought
together our Care of Older People, Performing Arts and Paediatric Participation
programmes, to be delivered to the entire hospital community.

This is in response to our research and evaluation, the person-centred care model
recommended by the new NHS Long Term Plan, and the recommendations of
the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE). These stress the
importance of immersive arts opportunities for the health and wellbeing of all
patient groups, as an integral part of care packages delivered in hospitals and the
wider community through social prescribing.

The programme extended beyond arts participation to incorporate support
services and information for patients, families and carers, in partnership with
community providers and external partners. This included opportunities such
as banking support, healthy eating advice and a support network, with partner
organisations playing a central role in the design and implementation of such
ideas.

Delivered seven days a week, our participatory arts programme is based on long-
term artistic residencies. All artists are commissioned in collaboration with staff
and patients at all stages and delivered in a range of settings including patients’
bedsides, ward dayrooms and outpatient clinics. There were 439 sessions
delivered by our Artist in Residence from June 2019 - March 2020, reaching
10,668 patients.

Future Hospital

In September 2019, robot companion pets MiRo and PARO joined the team, after
already undergoing a pilot project with patients, as a method of distraction. This
follows the success of recent studies in the US where initial findings revealed that
participants scored higher in cognitive scales and lower in the scale of depressive
symptoms.

In October 2019 we formed a collaboration with designers at Queen Mary
University of London, which resulted in a new prototype instrument, designed
specifically for Upper Limb Rehabilitation.

The MUSIC-HR study, an investigation into the relationship between musical
tempo and heart rate, completed its final participant trials at West Middlesex
University Hospital cardiology department. The study used the Pulse Music
system, designed by Dr. Andy Hall to modulate music tempo in reaction to real-
time heart rate data.
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CW+ was the chosen charity for the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea
The Community Bridge Programme

In May 2019 we were honoured to be chosen as charity of the year by The
Worshipful The Mayor of the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, ClIr. Will
Pascall. With support from the Mayor, we expanded our award-winning Arts for All
programme to create the Community Bridge programme, enabling us to reach out
to mostly older people, from hospital admission or outpatients attendance to their
lives at home within their communities. The Community Bridge programme aims
to:

e Support people to stay well in their communities
¢ Promote healthy ageing

* Improve health and wellbeing

¢ Connect with community and charitable services
e Support people living independently

To house the Community Bridge programme we created the CW+ Studio, a
bespoke space within Chelsea and Westminster Hospital which was intended
for the community as a hub of cultural activity. We also developed partnerships
across the Borough to enable us to signpost people to further arts, health and
wellbeing activities. Ultimately, we wanted to bridge the gap between discharge
from hospital and the community, in the hope that it would help reduce
emergency re-admissions, reduce pressures on GP practices and reduce social
isolation.

However, because of the COVID-19 outbreak, Community Bridge was temporarily
put on hold, but we envisage a need for such a programme now more than ever,
especially following social isolation caused by the lockdown. During COVID-19, the
CW+ Studio space was repurposed as a staff health and wellbeing hub, where staff
could congregate, chat and participate in such activities as yoga and mindfulness.

Exhibitions

Thanks to a grant from the National Lottery Heritage Fund, in May 2019, we
installed a permanent heritage exhibition at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital,
commemorating 300 years since the Hospital was founded. The exhibition
showcases historical artefacts from the hospital archive along with oral accounts
from former staff and photographs of hospital life over the past 300 years. A
timeline was also installed, and a short history booklet produced.

The heritage exhibition was launched to augment a service held at Westminster
Abbey in May 2019, marking the 300th anniversary of the hospital. Founded in
May 1719, with the help of a £10 charitable donation from Mr Henry Hoare, the then
Westminster Hospital (which later became Chelsea and Westminster) was the
first voluntary hospital funded by charitable donations and subscriptions. CW+

is proud to continue this philanthropic legacy today. The service was attended

by MPs, past and current NHS staff, supporters, other dignitaries and Alexander
Hoare, a direct descendent of founder Henry.

In October 2019, Our Arts for All programme and Community Bridge initiative
were showcased and promoted through an exhibition opening, generously
supported by the then Mayor of Kensington and Chelsea.
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The exhibition included an extensive array of works on display with pieces from
the CW+ collection by Lewis Khan, Laurie Hastings, Andy Council, Eduardo
Paolozzi and Anouk Mercier.

In September 2019, we installed The Art of Conversation, a new exhibition at
West Middlesex University Hospital, which combined the work of our four artists
in residence. Potter Emily Hall, photographer Lewis Khan and poet duo Tish

and Quddous from Poetical Word worked closely with staff and patients to
capture the experiences and sentiments of life on the wards. This culminated in
a collection of real stories and moments, inspired by the resilience, attitude and
support that both patients and staff exemplify every day.

Generously supported by the Tavolozza Foundation, artist Anouk Mercier was
commissioned to be our drawer-in-residence. Using drawing as a tool to gather
information and learn about hospital life, Anouk has now completed her #50
Nurses exhibition, sketching 50 nurses from historical photographs. She is using
hospital and local archives in an effort to identify the nurses.

Design and Environment

In June 2019, we held a launch event for our first published book, The Healing Arts,
celebrating 25 years of our Arts in Health programme at Chelsea and Westminster
Hospital. The book contains chapters written by artists, supporters and hospital
staff who were instrumental in establishing the original programme in 1993. The
book was well-received and featured in articles in such online publications as
Frieze and Design Week, and appeared in the print version of BMJ.

In July 2019, we worked with artist Olivia Healy to create new artwork for the
phlebotomy department at WMUH. Working with both staff and patients, Olivia
created bold and bright designs based on natural forms.

In October 2019, we completed the install of our Dental Sensory Room in
Children’s Outpatients at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital. The combination of
minimalistic decor, beautiful lighting and the option of playing patients’ favourite
tunes creates a safe and calming environment for anxious and unsettled young
patients.

Sun and Stars

In April 2019, a new playroom for our younger patients at West Middlesex
University Hospital (WMUH) was officially opened by the Mayor of Hounslow,

Cllr. Samia Chaudhary. Young patients, their families and staff were central to

the design process with Tigerplay, the specialist indoor play manufacturers
commissioned for the project. Previously, the playroom was outdated and in need
of refurbishment. The new playroom has now been transformed into a bright, fun
and welcoming environment, with plenty of space for arts and crafts activities.

Also at WMUH we commissioned graphic artist Supermundane, also known as Rob
Lowe, to design and create bespoke wall artwork, signage and colour schemes,

to be installed across the children’s ward, creating a fun environment for young
patients. So far, Supermundane’s designs have been installed in the reception

area and corridors. With the outbreak of COVID-19, at the end of the 2019-2020
financial year, Supermundane temporarily stopped physical work at WMUH but is
expected to return as the lockdown eases.
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Research and Innovation

We continued to share and encourage research in the arts, design and the
environment in healthcare settings.

In June 2019 our first PhD student, Greg Windle, published his thesis: The Impact
of Engagement with the Arts on the Health and Wellbeing of Hospital Inpatients
with Dementia, following three years of working with our arts participation
programme. The aim of Greg’s PhD was to explore engagement with the arts

and their psychosocial effects on inpatients with dementia. It focused on the
differences in psychological impact between traditional and digital art forms. One
study found short-term improvements in wellbeing, and a reduction in anxiety in
those inpatients engaged with both traditional and digital art, compared with a
control group.

In September 2019, CW+ and Snape Maltings Creative Campus collaborated
alongside leading experts on refining and implementing the idea of the Future
Hospital in a clinical environment.

In October 2019, our Arts Director spent a week in Japan at the invitation of
Nagoya City University and Healthcare Art, with support from the Japanese
Ministry of Culture. There he spoke at the Nagoya University Hospital and at
Tokyo’s Museum of Modern Art about our Arts in Health programme to audiences
of healthcare collaborators and arts experts from around the country.

General

The CW+ MediCinema at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital shows the latest films
free of charge to patients and their families and friends. Our Silver Screenings on
Mondays are dedicated to older patients, with residents from the Royal Hospital
Chelsea also invited to attend. Social distancing rules and the prevention of
visitors to the Hospital forced MediCinema to stop showing films in the cinema,
but instead patients can watch them on their bedside screens, as part of the
Hospedia programme.

Our partnerships with cultural organisations continued to support our Trust staff

benefits programme, by providing discounted or complimentary tickets to events
and performances, including at the Royal Opera House, Royal Albert Hall and the
London Coliseum.

We enjoyed showcasing our work at various national and international
conferences and events, sharing our learnings with the wider industry sector, and
forming new partnerships for future projects and collaborations.

3. Grants and Innovation

Grants

The Charity met its strategic goal to continue to deliver a discretionary grants

programme of at least £500,000 per annum, aligned to Trust priorities. It targets
the following areas:
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*  Promotion of innovation, transformation and new service development

e Support staff in the delivery of frontline patient care (Big Ideas)

*  Small, fast-track awards to support patient care and experience, up to £2,000
(Small Change Big Impact)

e Staff Training, Education and Development awards (TED) outside of mandatory
training

e Staff Welfare and Amenities Grants (SWAG)

Grants totalling £1.169m were awarded during the 2019 - 2020 period. A
breakdown of these is shown in note 3.1 to the accounts.

Innovation

In September 2019, we launched CW Innovation in partnership with the Trust,
aiming to deliver operational excellence and exceptional patient care by using new
technologies and innovative methodologies. As a founding partner of the Digital
Health.London Accelerator (DH.LA), CW Innovation aims to expedite the adoption
of digital health innovation in the NHS, ensuring that patients benefit faster from
new technologies.

Its mission is:

* To identify and test innovations that improve patient care, patient experience
and operational efficiency in a real-world setting with the aim of replicating
and scaling across the NHS

Its long-term vision is:
e To become a leader in healthcare innovation in the NHS and globally

Its overall objectives are:

e To work with external partners to bring to fruition new ideas and innovations

 To continue to identify, test, evaluate and adopt a portfolio of real-world
innovation projects

e To share best practice, and replicate and scale innovation initiatives across the
NHS

* To drive external awareness of CW Innovation and its pioneering work

 To integrate with other major charity themes - delivering components of
CAMHS, Treatment Centre and Arts in Health

e To secure and provide funding and resources to support a team of CW
Innovation Business Partners embedded in the Trust and working closely with
CW+

The programme will align its activities with Trust priorities at an organisational and
divisional level; we will work closely with Trust leadership to deliver it.

CW Innovation will work with external partners to bring new ideas and innovations
to fruition. Together, we will look for new and innovative solutions to address the
most fundamental challenges healthcare organisations face today. We established
an Innovation team in the Trust and an influential external Advisory Group, and
also continued to seed fund a range of projects across our hospitals. Some specific
projects funded with grants are outlined below:
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¢  We purchased a new burns laser system that treats burns on all skin types,
including darker skin. It enables cooling between a sequence of pulses,
protecting the epidermis and reducing the risk of unwanted side effects in scar
modulation treatments. The highly sophisticated system complements existing
ones, offering a world-class scar management service.

«  We funded a new digital system offering in-house custom 3D planning for
complex facial surgery patients, allowing surgeons to plan precise surgical
movements of facial bones. The software can also predict more accurately the
outcome of facial reconstruction surgery and can be used to construct a visual
image to show patients and their families.

* |PSoft’s Amelia is a cognitive Al agent that has been rated highly by third party
market experts and already serves industries including banking, telecom,
insurance, retail and IT operations. IPSoft is committed to develop Amelia in
the healthcare sector and would like to develop a partnership with CWFT to
prove its viability in the NHS.

«  We funded a major Proof of Concept project to introduce Amelia in a back-
office environment at the Trust, to demonstrate cost and efficiency savings.
If the PoC is successful, the aim is to develop a partnership with IPSoft, or an
alternative provider, aimed at expanding the deployment of Al technology in
other back-office and patient-facing areas.

We also agreed funding for several small-scale, innovative projects including:

¢ Enuresis alarms to help manage patient incontinence

* |Qoro - a neuromuscular training device to help patients with oropharyngeal
dysphagia (difficulty in swallowing) improve and regain control over those
muscles used to swallow

e Educate with Humour: videos for staff to assist patients; self-help videos for
patients to help them overcome harmful alcohol consumption

Supporting Trust staff
We continue to focus on awards that value and support Trust staff and volunteers.

In 2019-20 we spent a total of £29,952 from our Training, Education and
Development Fund (previously known as Staff Education and Development Fund)
on 37 applications. We awarded funds for individual training and conference
attendance, in addition to contracting external specialists to provide specific
training in our hospitals.

In 2019-20 we launched a new Staff Wellbeing and Amenities Grant (SWAG)
to support staff. In the first year we spent £1,387 on awards, including on a new
mattress to improve sleeping conditions for the surgery on-call room, and on
lockers for theatre staff.

We also fund the Trust’s monthly Proud Awards and the annual Staff Awards
Ceremony to recognise exceptional achievements.
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Small Grants

In 2019-20, we spent a total of £33,979 on some 47 Small Change Big Impact
(SCBI) projects for ward enhancements, recreational projects, non-essential
equipment, and others, including:

e Support for a weekly exercise class for people suffering from long-term pain,
aiming to promote self-management of pain

* Older adults moving and handling equipment, to facilitate patient transfers and
help engage them in daily activity

e Scanning cradle for use in neonatal hip scans. The equipment helps with a more
accurate diagnosis of hip dislocation and reduces scanning time

e Controlled drug cupboards, to help reduce the time it takes pharmacists to
process discharge medications

Special Funds

* In addition to specific appeals and projects, CW+ also holds special purpose
funds to support a range of activities across the Trust. These are detailed in
notes 10.1 and 10.3.

e CW+ awarded £339,210 from these funds in 2019-20. These support a wide
range of activities, including staff and patient welfare, medical equipment,
education and training. Fund advisers, who are hospital specialists in the
relevant fields, advise CW+ on best use of the funds.

COVID-19 Rapid Response Fund

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak across our communities, in March 2020
we launched a dedicated Rapid Response Fund to help our staff provide the best
possible care to those in need and to help them cope better with long shifts,
constant working in often unfamiliar, high-pressure, fast-paced environments and
working with a high volume of seriously ill patients and fatalities. In March 2020
we raised over £Im, and by June we had raised more than £3.4m.

Our hospitals prepared for a significant increase in patients needing support in
our intensive care units, with Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust playing a key role in responding to the virus. We accelerated the opening of
10 new intensive care beds in the new ICU at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital,
embedded new digital solutions to monitor and communicate with patients and
carers, provided enhanced training for staff and deployed a skilled volunteer
workforce to support the needs of both patients and staff.

The COVID-19 Rapid Response Fund supported our hospitals in the following key
areas:

e New Equipment - including scanners, blood gas machines and patient vital-
sign monitors

e New Technology - including remote monitoring devices, digital consultation
tools and mobile tablets

e Support for Frontline Staff - including health and wellbeing hubs at our
hospitals to provide respite, information and refreshments for our teams; and
the recruitment and deployment of a specialist volunteer workforce to support
staff and patients on our wards and across our hospitals

19



e Research - the PIONEER study was launched on May 1, 2020, after raising funds
from our donors. The study is intended for patients with mild to moderate
COVID-19, and involves using existing medications, repurposed for COVID-19.
PIONEER was rolled out first at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital, followed by
West Middlesex University Hospital.

Ensuring we have resources to meet our aims

Our goal is to have maintained our asset base represented by our long-term
capital fund to support CW+ programmes and its workforce.

The financial strategy and investment policy continue to deliver a sound asset
base to generate the resources to enable the delivery of our key strategic
workstreams:

 An excellent and productive fundraising team

 Delivery of a unique art and design programme to transform the experience
and wellbeing of our patients

e The sum of £500,000 per annum to invest in grants and the CW Innovation
programme to deliver exceptional patient care

Development and investment
Constitution and governance

Key to our success is the goal to develop and embed new governance procedures
for CW+ in our partnership with the Trust. Since January 1, 2017, when CW+
became a newly-constituted charity independent of the Department of Health,
our constitution, Trustee Board representation and positioning as the Trust’s
official charity have helped to successfully coordinate our objectives, outputs and
communications in true partnership with the Trust.

Investment in staff and development of fundraising capability

The Charity established an active and successful Development Committee, Art and
Design Committee and Innovation Advisory Board, and has continued to secure
six-figure gifts this year. We have developed a strong fundraising team to take
forward and develop an expanded and diversified portfolio. During the year, we
have invested in new staff members to deliver our programme, including a Head
of Development working on the Arts in Health fundraising portfolio.

The Year Ahead

In March 2020, the Trustees agreed the Charity’s three-year strategy for 2020-
2023.

Fundraising

*  With the support of the Development Board, Art and Design Committee
and CW Innovation Advisory Group, we will identify prospects to secure
gifts totalling £1.5m to support our core CW Innovation and Arts in Health
programmes

e We aim to raise £Im for our Arts in Health programmes, while we will raise
£500,000 per annum to fund CW Innovation

20



«  We aim to launch Phase 1 of Best For You, a major partnership programme
designed to transform how mental health care is delivered to young people
and their families across North West London. In the first year, we aim to raise
£3m.

e We aim to launch Phase 1 of CAMHS or Best For You, a £4m partnership
programme to transform how adolescent mental health care is delivered across
North West London. In the first year, we aim to raise £3m

*  We will raise £1Im towards the redevelopment of the Treatment Centre at
Chelsea and Westminster Hospital

«  We will expand on the corporate and community contacts made to extend the
Sun and Stars Appeal, aiming at a further £50,000

*  We will raise £500,000 for other grants and projects
e Total projected income from fundraising for the year ahead: £6m

*  We will continue to increase membership to the Henry Hoare Circle by offering
multi-year projects for donors who support with gifts of £100k and above.
Members receive regular communications, progress reports and invitations. We
will organise one event for these members, COVID-19 restrictions permitting.

«  We will build the final phase of our Sun and Stars Appeal, securing gifts to
transform our paediatric outpatient ward at West Middlesex University Hospital

«  We will install a donor wall and plan the creation of a community hub at
West Middlesex University Hospital, designed to increase our presence in the
community, by building a network of supporters and securing more regular
donors

COVID-19

We acknowledge that, although at the time of writing this report the lockdown is
being eased across most of England, scientists have warned that we could face a
second wave of Coronavirus. This could occur countrywide, however, it is more
likely to happen sporadically in “pockets” - specific towns and cities temporarily at
high risk.

In May 2020, the PIONEER study was launched at both our hospitals, examining
the use of repurposed drugs to treat patients with mild to moderate Coronavirus.
PIONEER was funded by our generous donors, who to date have helped us raise
over £800,000 towards this.

In addition to funds raised by CW+, PIONEER’s Principal Investigator Professor
Pallav Shah independently applied for and received a grant of £1.37m from
medical research charity LifeArc to research the science behind the trial.
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Events

Events planned for March 2020 onwards have been put on hold or are expected
to take place in an online or smaller face-to-face format, because of COVID-19 and
the risk of infection. Such events include:

* The re-opening of the CW+ Studio, which was repurposed as a staff health and
wellbeing space with the outbreak of COVID-19

«  West Middlesex University Hospital centenary: because of COVID-19
restrictions, we are planning a virtual reception in September 2020,
accompanied by a video. A larger event is tentatively scheduled for 2021.

e One bespoke event a year for Henry Hoare Circle members

e Launch event parking the new Critical Care Units, including the Sky Garden

e Saatchi Gallery exhibition, together with our Arts in Health programme

CW Innovation

¢ Our long-term vision is to become a global leader in healthcare innovation by
becoming the leading SMART Hospital in the NHS

e The programme will be resourced by a CW Innovation team embedded in the
Trust and working closely with CW+

«  We will work with such partners as the Digital Health.London Accelerator (DH.
LA) to source and develop exciting new health innovations to align with our
SMART Hospital vision

We currently have a portfolio of more than 70 ongoing innovation projects and
aim to deliver activity in three areas:

¢ Smart Patient Care - Helping to empower our patients and their carers to take
greater control of their relationship with the health system through improved
access to medical records, information and appointments; remote monitoring,
virtual clinics and out of hospital care; and through designing state of the art
environments to help improve recovery, rehabilitation and the experience of
patients and families in our hospitals

¢ Smart Ideas - Encouraging and enabling staff at all levels to bring forward
and ‘germinate’ new ideas to improve and advance all aspects of the frontline
care we provide and the way we run our organisation, supported by the CW
Innovation team and our partners

¢ Smart Operations - Integrating digital technology across our clinical and
corporate functions to improve patient outcomes and operational efficiency,
including increased use of Al and machine learning tools to support and
free-up staff and improve data analysis, optimise systems and support
interconnectivity with our Cerner electronic patient record.
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Grants

We will provide a discretionary funding programme of at least £500,000 p.a.,
supported by an independent Grants Committee comprising CW+ Trustees and
senior Trust staff. The funding priorities, which align with those of the Trust will
be:

o Innovation, transformation and new service development
o Supporting staff in the delivery of front-line patient care (Big Ideas)

o Small, fast-track awards to support patient care and experience (Small
Change Big Impact)

CW+ will take over control of the Joint Research Council funds from
the Westminster Medical School Research Trust to continue to deliver a
programme of research funding for the Trust

We will fund a three-year delivery of the Trust’s volunteering programme

CW+ will continue to fund initiatives that boost staff morale, and encourage
recruitment and retention, including staff awards and long service celebrations

Art and Design

We aim to attract a new generation of supporters and partners to help us deliver
a step-change in our programme with the aim of becoming an exemplar of Arts
in Health, both nationwide and internationally. The measurable outcomes from
our Critical Care Campaign will come to fruition in 2021, providing a foundation
layer of new data of the vital role our work plays in the delivery of healthcare in
the UK and beyond. We will continue to ensure that impact is embedded into our
major projects with the aim of transforming traditional approaches to modern
healthcare. We will:

Deliver the Arts for All programme of participation for all patients in our
hospitals and where relevant in the local community (Community Bridge). The
programme will include both the performing and visual arts.

Work with a range of partners to optimise existing clinical spaces as part of
our design and environment programme including adolescent mental health
unit, operating theatres, the treatment centre and other clinical areas. We
aim to commission 12 major artists and 36 emerging artists to support this
programme.

Green spaces in and around our hospitals are key to improving the patient
experience and clinical outcomes. Late 2020 will see the completion of the
Sky Garden at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital, which has been used as a
staff respite area since COVID-19. The light-filled Garden is adjacent to the
Critical Care redevelopment.
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e Our new Future Hospital programme will:

o Continue to commission and develop digital imagery and installations
to provide creative ways to distract and relax patients both in waiting
and treatment areas

o Work with experts from the fields of artificial intelligence (Al)
and robotics to explore approaches to create therapeutic robotic
companion pets for our longer-stay patients, as well as digital
solutions to bring interactive plants into clinical areas

o Develop new instruments for rehabilitation, which will transform the
stroke rehabilitation process into an opportunity for musical creativity

o A new project: ‘MyHospital’ dashboard will enable inpatients to
have more control of their immediate environment. Digital sensors
will monitor light levels, acoustics, and temperature, which may be
controlled from a patient’s bedside.

* Film also plays an important role in our Arts in Health programme. The CW+
MediCinema at Chelsea and Westminster Hospital is where our patients and
their visitors benefit from the immersive power of film. The films are free to
watch and include latest cinema releases and special screenings. The CW+
MediCinema closed with the outbreak of Coronavirus, with films screened at
patients’ bedsides, as part of the Hospedia scheme.

CW+ continues to lead the arts in health sector by commissioning robust research
into the effects of our programmes on the health and wellbeing outcomes of our
patients, their families, and our staff.

Financial Review

Total income for year ended 31 March 2020 at £4.8m represented a decrease of
circa 26% on the previous period. This was largely because the Critical Care
Campaign target was achieved ahead of schedule. The income included £1.233m
received for the COVID-19 Rapid Response Fund.

Investment income for the year ended 31 March 2020 was £507,000 (year ended
31 March 2019: £326,000). Net losses on investment assets amounted to £1.737m
(year ended 31 March 2019: gain of £993,000).

Fundraising costs were £1.010m for the year ended 31 March 2020 (year ended 31
March 2019: £783,000).

Charitable activities are divided between our Grants and Innovation programmes
and our Arts and Design programmes. In the year ended 31 March 2020
expenditure on grants payable including support costs was £1.331m (year ended 31
March 2019: £982,000) and Art and Design was £7.331Tm (£6.706m in 2019). This
included £5.967m towards the works on the Critical Care project.
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Support costs, including governance, for the year ended 31 March 2020 at
£557,000 (year ended 31 March 2019: £604,000), showed a fall of circa 8% on
the previous period. These costs are apportioned against the area of activity to
which they related and are therefore included in the figures quoted above. CW+
continues to be satisfied that such costs are being appropriately controlled.

Total charity funds fell from £44.675m at 1 April 2019 to £37.938m at 31 March
2020. £3.841m (2019: £7.205m) is held in restricted funds. This includes funds held
for the Critical Care Campaign.

After designations, Free Reserves stood at £16,000 at 31 March 2020 (31 March
2019: £438,000).

Investment Performance

The return in the portfolio (ex-property) for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
-6.1% versus a policy benchmark of -4.5%. The five-year annualised return to 31
March 2020 of the total portfolio was 3.6% versus an ambitious benchmark of 7.1%
(a target of 4.5% plus inflation). This represented underperformance of 3.5% per
annum.

Investment asset values appreciated significantly in April and May 2020 when

portfolio returns (ex-property) of 6.1% were achieved, significantly reversing the
majority of losses suffered during the COVID-19 outbreak.

Policies and Procedures

Fundraising Policy

Our approach to fundraising rests on positive supporter engagement in order to
attract, steward and maintain support, whilst respecting the wishes of our donors.
To help us achieve this, we store and segment supporter information using the
Harlequin Customer Relationship Management database.

The Charity is registered with the Fundraising Regulator and contributes to the
Fundraising Regulator Levy on fundraising charities. We adhere to the Fundraising
Regulator’s Code of Practice and to Charity Commission guidelines. Trustees are
aware of the Commission’s six fundraising principles and ensure adherence by
charity staff:

Effective planning

Supervision of fundraisers

Protection of charity reputation

Money and other assets

Ensuring compliance with laws and regulations

Following recognised standards; openness and accountability

O UAWN

Trustees and staff are aware of the need to protect the public, and especially
vulnerable people; hence no cold calls, telephone or street fundraising is carried
out, and no inducements are made to staff or volunteers. No professional
fundraisers or commercial participators carried out any fundraising activities on
behalf of the Charity.
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Failures to comply with Fundraising Standards will be reported to the Fundraising
Regulator if they occur, as will complaints, for which there is guidance for the
public on our website and an internal process to follow if any are received. There
have been no complaints nor any recorded failures to comply with fundraising
standards in the last financial year nor since the Fundraising Regulator was
introduced.

Our privacy policy covers how we use our donors’ data and provides opportunities
for all donors to opt out of contact with us or make a complaint at any point.

We provide website links to our privacy policy on fundraising materials, including:
our general charity leaflet, ward donation forms and electronic newsletters, which
are sent using MailChimp®.

Risk Management Policy

In order to meet their obligations for risk management in relation to the Charity,
the Trustees have adopted a framework under which they identify and monitor
risks. The Charity carries out a formal risk assessment, resulting in the preparation
of a detailed risk map. The procedures consist of the following:

 Development of a clear link between the Trustees’ business plan, objects of
CW+ and the identification of risks

e Preparation of an impact analysis if risks are identified

e Quarterly review of existing and proposed business activities to ensure that
new risks are identified, and that existing documented risks are revised or
removed if no longer appropriate

Using this process, the Trustees have carefully examined the major strategic and
operational risks faced by the Charity.

These are as follows:

e The principal risk is maintaining and protecting the value in real terms of its
long-term capital funds. There are calls on long term capital to provide for the
current needs of the hospital. The Trustees need to carefully balance these
needs with the needs of future generations. This risk is managed by developing
a clear long-term investment policy with the advice of expert investment
consultants with regular monitoring, through the Finance and Investment
Committee which meets quarterly.

¢ The Charity has made excellent progress with its £12.5m Critical Care
Campaign. This is the largest appeal the Charity has undertaken and a major
initiative for both Trust and Charity. The Trustees still have £363k in pledges in
the pipeline, which would achieve the campaign target. The Charity executive
team is working with the Trust to ensure the project delivery remains on track.

e The COVID-19 pandemic has presented a series of new risks for charity
operations.
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There is a risk that the CW+ strategy will no longer be deliverable under the
current crisis. The Executive team have reviewed the strategy and presented
updated key performance indicators (KPIs) to the Trustee Board. The Charity is
confident that it can continue to deliver its charitable objectives focused on its
core strategic themes. There is a change in emphasis in some areas in order to
coordinate a highly supportive response to the hospital’s delivery of healthcare for
the COVID-19 outbreak.

Investment values have been closely monitored by the Finance and Investment
Committee with the support of its adviser, Cambridge Associates. The portfolio is
structured to withstand economic and market shocks by incorporating significant
asset allocations to absolute return strategies and bonds. This strategy has proved
highly successful in restricting investment losses during the COVID-19 pandemic.

CW+ has carefully monitored and followed government and NHS advice on
business operations during the outbreak, with a special focus on risks relating to
staff health and wellbeing. Staff have worked from home whenever possible, with
meetings and events conducted online via platforms such as Zoom. Support has
been given to staff to avoid using public transport, and guidance has been issued
on how to behave should they need to attend the office or hospital.

Grants and Distribution Policy

Grant applications and other awards are considered at the Grants Committee and
recommendations made to the Board of Trustees. The Trustees have agreed to
proactively focus on the initiatives described in this report. These are in the long-
term interests of the hospital’s beneficiaries - the patients.

Reserves Policy

The Charity normally plans the distribution or designation of all its free reserves
through its charitable activities. It therefore does not plan the long-term retention
of undesignated free reserves. Free reserves stand at £16,000 at 31 March 2020
(31 March 2019: £438,000).

Funds

Unrestricted Funds:

The Charity holds £34.097m in unrestricted funds. It has designated the majority
of these for different purposes. The breakdown and projected timescales for
application of these funds is shown in notes 10.2 to the accounts.

Designated Funds:

e Long Term Capital

The Long-Term Capital Fund has been established over many years to provide for
both current and future needs of patients and communities served by the Trust
and the Charity. The £29.912m Long Term Capital Fund is invested to provide
stability and liquidity for the Charity’s activities in the long term.
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e Arts: Assets
This £2.904m fund represents the art on display in and around the Trust. It is not
readily realisable and therefore does not constitute free reserves.

e Other designated funds

The Charity holds 129 funds totalling £1.265m which are designated to support
activity at different parts of the Trust. A full list of the funds is available from the
Charity on request.

Restricted Funds:
Restricted funds are reserved for specific purposes. Details of the funds are shown

in note 10.1.

Investment Policy

Our Long-Term Capital Fund delivers the resources to enable the Charity to
increase considerably its impact and fundraising capacity. This allows voluntary
income to be delivered directly to support our charitable priorities in art and
design, research and clinical innovations. The Charity invests its Long-Term Capital
Fund in accordance with its Investment Policy Statement (IPS). This is summarised
below.

The financial objectives of the overall portfolio are to:

* Preserve and enhance the real (inflation-adjusted) purchasing power of the
portfolio, and

*  Provide a stream of relatively predictable, stable and constant earnings in
support of annual budgetary needs

The long-term investment objectives of the portfolio are to:

e Preserve real value. The portfolio is targeted to achieve an average annual real
total return (net of investment management and consultancy fees) in excess of
the annual spending rate. A real return performance target of 4.5% p.a. has
been identified over the long-term (defined as a period of 20+ years).

* The portfolio should attempt to achieve these objectives within acceptable risk.

Over the long term, it is expected that portfolio risk (volatility), as measured by
the standard deviation of annual returns, will be in the range of 10-13%.

Spending Policy

The Charity will target a spending rate of 3.0% of long-term capital. To preserve
the portfolio’s long-term value, the target spend rate is smoothed over a three-
year period to ensure that spending volatility is managed within an acceptable
range. The Trustees have discretion to increase this spending rate in any one year.
4.25% was allocated to spending in 2019-2020 to allow the Charity to sustain its
fundraising capacity for the future.
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Structure, Governance and Management

Objects

The objects of the Charity are set out in its governing document, the Articles of
Association of the company, dated 4 October 2016. The objects of the Charity are
for any charitable purposes relating to the general or specific purpose or purposes
of the Trust or the purposes of the health service (as described in Section 1 of the
NHS Act 2006 or any statutory modification of that section).

The Trustees also held other charitable funds on trust for specific purposes
connected with the Trust and the wider NHS, a number of which are registered
with the Charity Commission as part of the Trustees’ group.

Governance

The Charity has an independent Board (currently ten Trustees). The Chairman is
elected annually by the Trustees. The Trustees are appointed by a Nominations
Committee established under its Articles of Association. Trustees can be
reappointed for a second four-year term. The Trustees shall normally consist of
the following:

a) At least seven but not more than thirteen natural persons who are over the
age of 18

b) All of whom must be Members, support the Objects and have signed a
written declaration of willingness to act as a charity Trustee of the Charity

c) A minority of whom (being one-half of the total number of Trustees at any
time excluding the Chairman) shall be appointed from Trust candidates; and

d) A majority of whom (being one-half of the total number of Trustees at any

time, plus one) shall be independent of the Trust

The Trust shall identify candidates to constitute one-half of the Trustees (not
counting the Chairman) at any time. The Trust shall give details of its proposed
candidates for Trusteeship to the Nominations Committee, and such candidates
shall then (if, after review, they are recommended for appointment by the
Nominations Committee) be appointed as Trustees, by the Trustees. If the
Nominations Committee declines to recommend a candidate of the Trust as
Trustee, the Trust shall propose further candidates until the post is filled.

Apart from candidates proposed by the Trust, all other Trustees shall be
appointed by the Trustees via the operation of a Nominations Committee. The
Nominations Committee will review potential candidates against the Trustees’
criteria and make recommendations for appointment, subject always to the
Trustees’ final approval.

The Chairman must be appointed by the Trustees from the independent Trustees.
New Trustees receive an induction pack and have a series of induction meetings.

All Trustees are updated on current issues and are invited to attend relevant
seminars and conferences.
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In addition to attending quarterly meetings of the Board of Trustees, each Trustee
is a member of at least one of these Committees:

. Art and Design Committee

. Finance and Investment Committee
. Grants Committee

. Fundraising Governance Committee

The Committees meet at least four times a year and make decisions under
delegated authority and make recommendations to the Board of Trustees. Each
Committee must include at least two Trustees. The minutes of the Committees are
formally recorded and submitted to the Board of Trustees.

Pay and Remuneration Arrangements

The Board of Trustees has specific responsibility for remuneration matters. It will
agree final recommendations on annual increases to the salary budget at its March
meetings through the budget-setting process for the forthcoming financial year.

The Chief Executive and Senior Management Team will make recommendations on
starting salaries for new staff. They will make recommendations on increases and
performance-related bonuses for existing staff, subject to approval by the Board.
The Board of Trustees will agree remuneration matters for the CEO.

The Charity has a flexible salary structure. Each individual’s remuneration will be
fair and appropriate with reference to prevailing market rates for similar roles and
responsibilities. There are no salary scales or set incremental rises.

There will be an annual review of salaries each year. The annual review will not
guarantee an increase in salary. The review will take into consideration changes
in the cost of living and prevailing market rates for comparable work and
performance in the year under review.

Management

Day-to-day operations of the Charity are managed by the Chief Executive,

who reports to the Board of Trustees. The heads of the Charity’s functional
departments all report to the Chief Executive. These individuals form the Senior
Management Team.

Related Parties

None of the Trustees receive remuneration or any other benefit from their work
with the Charity. Any connection between a Trustee or senior management of
the Charity with providers of services to the Charity must be disclosed to the full
Board of Trustees. There were no such connections reported in the period ended
31 March 2020.

Volunteers

The Trustees would like to pay tribute to the role of volunteers who have played a
key role in delivering our art and design programme. We would also like to thank
our committee and advisory panel members who volunteer their time to provide
the Charity with valuable advice, guidance and fundraising support.
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each
financial period that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources,
including the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period.
In preparing those financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

¢ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

e  Comply with applicable accounting standards, including FRS 102, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

¢ State whether a Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) applies and has
been followed, subject to any material departures which are explained in the
financial statements

¢ Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

¢ Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

e There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s
auditor is unaware; and

e The Trustees have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make

themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditor is aware of that information

The Trustees’ Annual Report is approved by the Trustees of the Charity.

Signed on behalf of the Trustees on: 8 September 2020

N2

Tony Bourne, Chairman
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of CWPLUS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of CWPLUS (‘the company’) for the year
ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102: The Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Ireland, (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

¢ Give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as
at 31 March 2020 and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended

¢ Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

¢ Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which
the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

e The Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

¢ The Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company’s
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least 12 months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Trustees
are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements

does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly

stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is

to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e The information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report for the financial period
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

¢ The Trustees’ Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

 Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

e Certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

*  We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit; or

« The Trustees were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies
exemption from preparing a Strategic Report
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Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page
33, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing
the charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the charitable
company’s internal control

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
Trustees
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the charitable company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the charitable
company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to any party other than the charitable company and charitable
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

MCD"C (}(Mjsl'm Qo (Lf

Luke Holt (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor

Devonshire House
60 Goswell Road, London ECIM 7AD

Date: 23 September 2020

37



8¢

‘suoljedado SUINULIUOD WU SALIBP SBLIALDE || "SIUNOJDE 353y} O Hed wJoy 95 03 T saded 1e sajou ay

SL9bp 50z, 0Lb'LE
629°st £20°8 759°/€
(+00°T) (zzs) (zs1)

- (9t) 9t
(+00°T) (9££) (szz)
€66 - £66
(£66°T) (9££) (tzz‘t)
1958 vSE9 £02°C
9049 5109 169
z86 13 59

06 - 06

€8/ 8 S/
v959 8/5°S 986
9ze - 9z¢
8¢ - ss
F431 zr 0zt
8909 995°s z05
0007 0007 0007
spun4 spun4 spun4
(2]} pa312141s3Y Ppaialiysaiun

8€6°LE 1v8'E L60'VE
SL9'VY S0Z'L oLV LE
(£€L79) (r9€‘e) (€L€'€)
- (12) 1C
(LgL9) (eve‘e) (r6€‘E)
(£gLT) - (L€L'T)
(8v) - (8%)
(zs6v) (eve‘e) (609°T)
LLL'6 veo‘L £VL'T
TE€EL 96v'9 Ge8
TEET 605 44
S0T - S0t
0101 6C 186
SZ8'v 169°€ PET'T
L0S - L0S

8T 1 LT

€€T - €€T
L9T'Y 069°€ LLY
0003 0003 0003
spun4 spung spung
|e101 palsay pausaiun

610Z Y240\ TE Buipua 4nag

0202 YdJeIAl TE Sulpus Jea)

o)

A
9's

Te
Te

VL
€¢
[axd
T¢

ajoN

0202 Yd4BINl TE e PIemIo) palLied spuny |e3ol

6T0Z |14dy T 3e piemJioy ySnouq spuny |e1o]
spuny Jo uoneljPU0IRY

Spunj uj JUdWIAAOW 1N
spunj usaM1aq siajsuel)
ainypuadxa 19N

S$13SSE 1UsW1SaAUl Uo suled/(sasso|) 19N
S19SSe |euolduny Jo UOLBN|BARS UO (S3550|) 19N

$19SSE JUWISIAUL UO suleS 19U 240434 INHPUIAX3 19N
ainyipuadxa |eyor

udisag pue suy
9|qeAed sjueln
sanIARde 3|geydeyd

51502 JuaWaSeuewWw JUBWISIAU|
3uisiespuny

spuny 3uisiey

:uo aunupuadxy

SJUBWMOPUS pue aWodu| |e3oL
3WO0dUl JUSWISIAU|
saniAnoe Suiped)
sanIAnoe 3|qeley)

sapeda| pue suoneuoq

:WoJj sjuswmopua pue awoduj

0202 Y24e|Al TE PIPUS JEIA BY3 40§ SIIALIY [EIdUBULS JO JUSWILLIS



6€

YETOTYOT 42qwnu uopneuisidas Auedwo)

'suopresado SuINULIUOD WU SALIBP SALIALDE || "SIUN0JDEe 33y} Jo Jed wuoy 95 03 T saded je sajou ay |

’\”@U W ‘uewuJiey) ‘auinog Auoyiuy Aq jjeyaq Jisyl uo pausis pue Jaquiaidas g uo saaisnJl 3yl Aq panosdde aiam O 01 g€ s98ed uo sJuLWIL1e]S |BlDURUY BY L

S/9bv 502 0LV LE
ozy - oty
050°LE - 0S0°LE
[1Y4/4 502/ -
S/9'vv S0z 0LV LE
(9v1) (85) (88)
¥9€ (9/1) (881)
(z60°T) (9/1) (916)
-1 44 - 8z/
529 - 529
/8 - /8
9T - 9T
S8I‘SY 6EV'L IwLLE
192°CY 650/ 878vE
59/ - s9/C
£ST - £ST
0007 0007 0007
spun4 spun4
|b101 Pa31214153Y pa3a143saauf

610Z Y210\ TE bulpua 1naj

8€6°LE 1Y8'E L60'VE
91 - 91
180°vE - 180°vE
Tv8'E Tv8'E -
8€6°LE Tv8'E L60"VE
(0s) - (0s)
8811 €87 S00°T
(€6T°T) (80¢g) (s88)
189°C 164 068‘T
9Tt - 9Tt
EEV'T 164 w9
r4 - r4
00S‘9€ 8SE'E WT'EE
96S‘€€ 8SE'E 8€2°0€
vS8C - vS8C
0s - 0s
0003 0003 0003
spun4 spun4
|eloL pa1ISaYy paluisalun

0202 Y21e\l TE Suipusd Jesp

70T

6

©

3j10N

spunj Ayey) [erol

IEYSERCYEEYE
spuny pajeusisaq
spuny pajlIsalun
spunj paiolIsay
Aey) ays yo spuny

Sjosse jau |ejo)

JeaA auo uey} aJow uIYHM
anp 8ulj|e} syJunowy :s103paJt)

(sanijiqer)) s1asse Jualind 1N

JeaA auo ulyum anp Sulj|ej sluUNoWY :SI0HPaID
sanljiqen

S19SSE JUa.IND [e10L
puey ul pue yueq e ysed

s10199Q

3|eSaJ 404 P|aY SYI0MIIE PajeUO( )I03S
s)asse jJualin)

sj9sse paxy |ejoL

SIUBWIISANU|

sjasse 9|qi8ue]

sjasse a|qiduely|

Sjosse paxi4

0202 Y24eIAl T€ 1€ Se 193ys aduejeq



ov

S¢9

529

(sLv'2)

(zss)
T6€

(9ze)
(€66)

6

(#00'T)

S¢9

sce
(004

S¢C

00L°c

(S/t°2)

000F
spunf |pjof

6102 Y210\ TE Buipua 1p34

(zL€7€)
65L°S
(€T)
9z¢

9T

9ve'T

(LL'9)

S
(9t€T)
vT
(£0S)
LEL'T
sv

6

(zgL9)

(ov2‘T)

129
S¢9

179

86€L

(£L29)

0003
spuny |ejoL

0202 Y21e\l T€ Sulpud Jea)

sjuajeninba yseds pue ysed |ejo)
puey ut ysep

sjuajeninba ysed pue yseo jo sishjeuy

sanianoe Sunesado Aq pasn ysed 19N

SJ01IpaJd Ul (9seadaq)/asealdu|
SJ01q9p Ul 3seasdaq/(ssesou))
9|eSaJ J0) P|3Y S}9SSE PIYLUOP Ul 95ealI9Q
SIUSWI1SDAUI WOJY SIUDJ PUE 1S2421Ul ‘SPUSPIAIQ
SJUBWIISAAUI UO (SUleD)/sass0T
$19SSe |euoduny JO UoLeN|eAdd UO S95S0T
se8Jieyd uonespiowe pue uoneldaldsg

110§ spuawnsnipy

(senianay |eoueuly )
J0 JudWae1s 3yl Jad se) porsad Sunaodas ayi 10y aunupuadxa 19N )

(1) powad Suniodal ay3 jo pus ayi 1e sus|eainba ysed pue ysed

poriad Sunuodad ay3 ul syusjeainba ysed pue ysed ur a3uey)d
(1) porsad Sunsodal aya jo Suluuidaq ayi 1e syuajeainba ysed pue yse)

pouad Sunuodau ays ui syuajeainba ysed pue ysed uj a8uey)

sapiAnoe SulSanul WOy SMOjjul Ysed 13N

(vSv'oT) SIUBWIISAAUL JO dSeydind
88/ 1 SIUBWIISAAUI JO B|BS WOJ4 SPISI0IJ
(€b) juawdinba pue sSuY ‘SaINIXY :S19SSE Paxy JO aseydund
105 SIUBWIISAAUI WIOJS SIUBJ PUE 1S2I3UI ‘SPUBPIAIQ

:saiIAROE SULSIAUL WOJY SMOJS Yse)

(1) senianoe Sunesado Ag pasn ysed 1oN
:sanianoe Sunesado woly smoyy ysed

0Z0T Y24l TE SMOJ Ysed Jo Judwajels



1A%

"95B3| 3Y1 JO W) 9Y3 JAAO Siseq aulj-1ySiesis e uo padieyd aue sases| Sunesado Japun sjejuay
$1502 aspa| bunpiado

's91poq SHN 03 pled sjuels sapnjoul siy] “Juesd ayl an192aJ [|Im Aay3 1eyl uoljeldadxa a|qeuoseal e sey Axed pJiyl ayi pue uaididal syl 01 pPaledIuNWWOod Udaq dAeY Syuels ay} aJaym
JO 39W Ud3q dAeY JudWAed JIay} JOj SUOLIPUOD BY} BJBYM SISE] S[ENIIDE UB UO JOJ Pa3UN0IIE 3Je A3y "SaALda(0o 3|gellieyd ay3 Jo duelayiny ayl ul sanded paiyy o3 apew ‘syuawAed ale ajqeded syueio

SanIALID 3|qIIDYD

"SUOLIOE JUBWISIAUL UM PIIBIDOSSE S3S0D 3Y3 dpN|dUl [|IM SIYL “Spuny s,Allieyd ay3 Joj awodul Sunesauasd y3m pajeidosse s1sod ay3 aJe spuny Suisied Jo 1500 ay |

spunf buisipi uo ainypuadx3y

"IY/\ 9]0BISA0DRI] JO BAISN|IUI
aJe 5350) "Anied pJiy3 e 03 JuawAed e ayew 03 uoleSI|go AALINIISUOD U0 |ES3| B S| 3J3Y3 20UO PasIuS0dai S| ainHpuadxa ||y "3da0U0d S[ENJIDE BYI YIIM 3d2UBpI0dde Ul pasedald e sJuswalels |elpueuy ay |

ainupuadxy

"1d1923J uo pasiugodal aue 3|esal 0 Spoos pajeuoq
3|psa. 4of spoob paipuog

"aW0dul 03 JUBWI|INUS Sey Alueyd ay3 pue 3|qeqoud s 1d1903J ‘9|qeinseaw sawodaq Ade8a| ay3 40 3d19334 3yl U0 WO U] SE 40 PAIUNOIJE 3Je S3I10ea]
salnbay

"A1|10B1]3J JUBIDLHNS YIM PRINSEIW 97 UED SWOIU| 3Y] 4O 3N[eA AJBISUOW Y3 USYM - JUBWDINSEIW o

pue {panladal aq [|IM awodul 3y} 1ey3 djqeqodd si 3 uaym - Ajjigeqold e

‘a|qeadJo4ua Ajje8a| sawo0daq 1ySiJ s,AHIeyD Y3 JO ‘9|qBAIDI S| 92IN0SAJ Jejnd1ied B UBYM SISLIE - JUSWS|IIUD
119W 90 UEJ SJ030B} 3343 SUIMO||0} BY1 SB UOOS S SILIALDY |BIDUBUIS JO JUSWIEIS BY3 U [|N} Ul PAPN|IUI S| SWODUI ||V
awoau|

‘MO|2( N0 135 dJ SJUBW1E]S |eldueUY Y3 Jo uonesedald ayi ul pardope saidijod Sununodode jedpuiid syl
spunod puesnoy} auo 153Jeau 3yl 0} PAPUNOJ dJe SJUSWILE]S |BIDURUY 953U Ul Sjunowe Aielauoly Aluey) sy jo Aouauind jeuorouny ayl si yaiym ‘Suiials ul pasedaud aie syuswialels [eloueuly sy

'900¢ 19V saiuedwio) ay1 pue TTOZ 1V sauley) ay1 ‘(z unajing a1epdn Suipnjaul dyos sauiieyd Z0T SY4 Y1) puejad] o djgnday pue ¥n ay1 ul 3jqedjdde piepuels Sunioday [epueuld 9yl yum
90oUBPJOIDE U] S3UNOJIE JI3Y} Suliedasd saplieyd 01 a|gedljdde 9o130eld PIPUSWILIOIRY JO JUSWISILIS BY} YIIM 32UBPIOIIE Ul SJUSWIE)S [eldUBUY S} paJedald os|e AjlieyD ay3 3404249yl pue zoT Sy 4o sasod
-ind ay3 4oy Ayua 1yauaq o1jgnd e si Adeyd ayl “(z0T SY4) puejad| Jo a1jgnday pue )N ay3 ul djgedijdde paepuels Sundoday |eldueul{ 3yl YHM oueplodde Ul paledasd usag aney sjuswaiels [epueuy ay |

'S3LIALIDY [BIDUBUIH JO JUSWALIS BY3 UIYHM 24n3puadxa pue awodul Y8noayl anjea Jiej 3e pain

-seaw Sulaq ‘syasse a|qiSueiul pue 3|qISuel SWOS pUe SIUIWISIAUI JO UOLIEN|BARS 3Y) AQ PayYIPOW SB ‘UOLIUSAUOD 3S0D |BI1I03SIY BY3 Japun ‘siseq uJaduod Sulo8 e uo pasedaid aJe suUaWIELIS [BIDURUY 3SBY L
uonesedaud jo siseg

sapijod Sununody

Sjuno22e 3y} 03 S3I0N



[4%4

‘(401€)

31 9seyaind Jo a1ep uo anjeA Jo) anjeA 1yJew Sujuado pue pua poliad Yoea e an|eA 19yJew Usamiag 90UaJayIp Yl Se pale|nd|ed ale sasso| pue suled pasijealun "(4a1e| 4l aseyaind Jo d3ep Uo anjea Jo) anjea

19yJew Sujuado pue spaadoJd sajes U2aMIaq 2UIBHIP Y1 SB PAIB|NI|ED SJe SJUBWISIAU| UO SSSO| pue suled pasi|eay "aslie A3y} Se SaLHALDY [BIOUBUI JO JUBWILLS 3Y} 0} Ude) dJe S3sSO| pue suled ||y
$9s50| pue suiesd pasijeay

"9014d 19¥JeW Je 399YsS dUB[Eq BY3} Ul PIPN|DUl 3JB SJUBWISIAUI Y10
"T°/ 910U 335 ‘SI0ASAINS paJaiey) 417 9A3 p|edaD Ag Ino paliied sem uolen|ea siyl "/ 10z J2qwiaidas g 1e sadadoud 413yl panjeaas saaisni) ayL

‘uoljen|eA }ayJew e UMoYs aJe Ing paleldaidap jou aJe s1asse Ajadoid

"aN|eA 19)JewW 1B UMOUYS 3Je S}3SSe PaxL JUSWISIAU|

S19SSE Paxy JUSWISAAU|

"9pew uaaq sey uolien|eA ay3} 03 JUBWISN[pe OuU 3404249y} pue 38Ueyd |elI91EW B U3 9ABY 0} 943Y3 JOPISUOD 10U OP PUe 0ZOZ-6TOT Ul S19SSE [EUOLIDUNS BY3 JO UOLEN|EA BY) PIMBIASI dARY S333ISNJL 3y

JuawJedw] 0 PAMBIIARI BJe S1BSSe paxy 3|qiSue} Jo sanjen SulALied 3y} uayl 3|qelanodal aq Jou Aew
anjea SuiAiied ay3 1ey3 91edIPUI SIOUBISWNIIID Ul SUBYD JO SIUDAS J| ‘UOLHIPPE U| "AJBSSII3U 41 Palsn[pe pue PaMaIARJ DJe SISSE JO SAI| [NJASN pue sanjeA |enpisal ay3 ‘polsad Suiodal yoea jo pua ay3 Iy

‘wnuue Jad 9%0g 1e siseq aul| 3ySielis e uo pajeldaidap pue 1500 1e pasijended ale Juswdinba pue sSumy pue sainixy pue asemyos Jandwo)

‘|elJ9)eWW] g 01 PAJSPISUOD S| S19SSE 3y 01 984eyd uoneldaldap Aue a10jaiay) pue anjea 300g ay3 Yiim a|qesedwod agq 03 PaJapISUOI SI S}3SSE S1Ie JO IN|eA |enpisal ay3 se padieyd si uonedaldap oN
211qnd |esauad ay3 pue Jeis ‘SIousIA ‘syusned

a1 Aq pakofua aq ued Asyy asaym sease d1gnd ul pais aJe ‘Aejdsip 4o} pa3da|as ‘1Je JO SHJOM dY] "SIIBIDYDU] S} 0} JIAISS B 9pIA0Jd 01 S19SSE [BUOLIDUNY SB p|ay aJe S19SSe siie 9|qiSue) pue a|qiSueu]

$]9sSb paxi4

‘puny pa1d1Isal B Se SJUN0JE 3Y3 Ul PayIsse|d si puny ay3 ‘and ag Aew puny e yoiym o3 asodand ay3} uo UOBIIIISAI B S| 943Y1 2J3YM
spunf pajaLisay

'spuny pajeusisap se payisse|d aJe aininy ayy ul sasodind JejnanJded Jo) S991sNJL Y3 AQ payJeWIRS SpUny PaldIIISAIUN
spunf pajpubisap ay3 pup spunf pajalisaiuf

‘0T 910U U] pPaso|asIp aJe $3110891ed 953Y1 UIYUM p|ay spuny Jofew ay] "Spunj JUsWMOpPUS pUe spuny pajdlilsal ‘(spuny pajeusisap Suipnjaul) spuny pa1dlisalun Japun paylisseld ale spuny s,Ajieyd ayl
spunf fo ainyanais

eaA 9y} ul 3|qeAed suolINgIIUOD BY3 JO B30} BY] S| SDWAYIS UOLINGLIIUOD PAUYIP Sy} 01 S3S0D UoIsSUd JO 109dSaJ Ul SBLHALDY [BIDUBUIH JO JUBWRILLS By} 01 padieyd Junowe ay|
$1502 uoiIsuad

ST

(panunuod) syunodde ayj 03 S3I0N



114

"91ep 193Ys 2dUk|eq 3y 1e anjea
J1e} JO 91EWINASA 1594 3y} JUdsaIdal suolen|en palepdn 3yl 1ey3 JOPISUOD S31ISNJL BYL "dN|eA 0} SJUNOISIP JUBNSJ PUB SNJIABUOJIO0D 3y} 40 3oedwl [enualod ay3 ul Suliolde) ‘UoLIBWIOUI 19)Jew 3|ge|lene
9|qesedwod pue spadxa Aled paiyl WoJy 3JIAPE 0} 93U YHM 21EP 193YS 2dUB|eq dY] 1B SB SUOLIEN|BA 3Y} PRJIPISU0D-3J dABY S931ISNJL 3Y1 "UOLHPT Y39 (SDIY) SJ0AanINng paiariey) o uonniisu| jeAoy ayi
JO SpJepuElS UoLleN|eA SY3} Ul PUIBIUOD S0 2UEPIND PUE SIUBWIIEIS 9I130BId AU} YHM 3dUBPIOIE. Ul /07 J9quaidas Og Uo ‘417 9A3 pledan ‘Aved pJaiyl e Aq panjea-ad ise| sem Ajiadoud Juawisanul ay L

‘[eqo|D oog pay SJIY Y3 JO 0T VOdA PUE € SdA Jad se ,Ajuieniaoun uoyen|ea [eliajeuw, Jo siseq ayy uo suoiienjea Suriedaud aue sioAsnins Auew pue Jea|d 394 jou S| s3ayJew
Ariadoud uo (6T-QIAOD) SN4IABUOIOD [9A0U Y3 JO 1oedwl [N} 9y diwapued snJiAeu0I0D By} woJ) Suisiie sanuieladun 4o 31| ul AjaejnonJded ‘uoneniea Jiayl ul patjdde syuswadpn[ ayl pue paAjoAul SUNowe
9Y3 JO M3IA Ul 91eWNSd SuUNOJde |Ed1Y1ID B 9 01 PAJSPISUOD SI SIY] "SIUBWDILLS [eIOUBUY B3} 01 T°/ 910U Ul PIQLIISIP SB UOLIEN|BA JB SIUSW1e]S [BIdUBULY 3yl Ul papnjdul s Auadoud Juawisanul s,Aueyd sy

"aN|eA 19JeW 4194} 3¢ OS|e 03 PAWIIP S| Y2IYM 3SOD 1B PapN|oul U3aq dABY SUOLIPPE JUaNbasgns "a1ep 1ey3 3JUls sanjeA ul 93ueyd [e1Ja3ew ou uaadq

sey 242y} 9A31|aq S991SNJ] 9y} pue 0z0gZ AJenigad QT e se s,2us1yD) Ag papinoid sem uonen|en 3sale| Y| “sianjen Aued paiyi Aq papinoad spodas uo paseq uolen|ea e 1e papnjaul si g ajou Jad se ylomuy
"SJUBWIRLE]S |BIDUBUY 9} U] PasIUS00aJ SJUNOWE UO 1039 JUedYIUSIS 1S0W aABY 0} $933SNJ} 3y} Aq paJapisuod

s1 3uawaspn( SuIMo||o By "SIUSWIIE]S [BIDUBUL BY} Ul PASIUS0aJ SJUNOWE 33 1094e 1ey) suondwnsse pue sa}ewlsa ‘suawadpn( ujelad ayew 01 AJessadau S| 3l syuswaiels [eppueuy Suledasd ul
sjuawaspn( Jo asn ay) pue sease SunUNOIIE |EINIID

"SS9| JO SYIUOW 994y} 4O SaL}IINIeW [BUISIIO YHM SIUSWISAAUI pINbI| WU3-HOoYs JaYy3o ‘Syueq Yim ||ed e p|ay syisodap ‘puey ul Ysed apn|oul SIUsjeAinba ysed pue ysed
sjusjeninba ysed pue yse)

'S910U JOUP3ID
pue J03gap dY3 JOJ 6 PUE § S9I0U 335 "ZOT SH4 JoPUN SIUBWINJISUI [BIDUBUY JISEQ 3¢ 03 PAJIPISUOD B S9dUE|E( JOIPAID PUE JOIGIP JBYIO [|B SWOdU| PaJId)ap pue sjuswAedald jo suondaoxa ayl Yyum

"Ajsnoauey|nwis Ayljigel] 8yl 9]113S puUe 13sSe 3y} 35I| 03 1O SISeq 39U B UO 9|139S 03 UOLIUIUI UE S| 213y} pUe sunowe pasiugodal ayl o 3195 03 W31 3|qeadsoua Ajjesa)

B S| 9J9Y} USYM ‘SJUSWIDILIS |BIDUBUL 9} U] pajuasald Ssjunowe 19U 3yl YUM ‘1950 aJe sall|Igel| pue S13sSe |eldueul "JUawnJlsul 3y} O suoisinoid [en3oesauod ay3 o3 Aled sawodaq Auedwod ay} uaym
199ys 2oue|eq s,Auedwod ay3 uj pasiugodal aJe SUAWNIISUI [BIDUBUIS "SIUBWINIISUL [BIDUBUY S} 4O ||B 03 ZOT SH4 4O ,SIUSWNJISU| [eIDUBUI4 JIseq, TT UOLIaS Jo suoisinoid ay3 Ajdde 03 pa3oale sey Auueyd ayl
sjuswinJisul jeppueuly

‘syuawalels [epueuy sy Suliedald ul siseq uiaduod Sulod ay3 3dope 01 SANULUOD 404313y} AllJeyD B "94NINy 9]qea3SaJ40) 3yl 410} 9IUIISIXd |eUOLEISdO Ul SNUKUOD 0} S324N0S3I denbape sey Aueyd

9y3 1ey1 uoe10adxa 3|qeuoseal e S| 313y} 1By} PAPN|OUOI dABY S333SNJ] Y3 Saldinbua Suiyew Jayy "dwodul uo sainssaid J0 JuUNodJe Udy e} aAeY pue suondafoid pue s3sedauoy s,Alieyd syl palapisuod aney
$933snJ| 8y} JejnoJed uj 'spuawalels [eldueuy 3y Jo jerosdde Jo a1ep ay3 wouy Jeah auo 1sed| 1e Jo poliad e J0j JUBWISSISSE SIY} dpeW dABY S9331SnJ] 3Y] "uJaouod Sulog e se anuiuod 03 Ajldeyd ays jo
Adlj1ge ay1 uo 1gnop juedyiusis 1sed ySiw 1eyl ‘6T-AIAOD Sulpn|dul ‘SuoIpuUOd JO SIUBAS 3|qIssod palapisuod aney pue aielidosdde si siseq usaduod 3ul08 3y JO SN BYL JBYIBYM PISSISSE dABY S3BISNJ] YL
uJ4a2uo0d 8ulon

‘T’ 910U
u1 p3jie1ap saseq ay3 uo Joddns Asyy A1o8a1ed 1500 AlIAOE JUBAS|SS DY) 0} Paledo||e aJe S3500 Joddns By SalALoe 9|qellieyd ay3 ‘spuny Suisied uo ain}ipuadxa U9aMIS(Q PaIeIO|e Udaq ARy $3500 1ioddng
s3502 Moddns jo uonedo|y

"asuadxa ue pue Ajjigel| e se pasiu8odal aue syyauaq aaAojdwa WIS3-10Ys JO S3S0D Y|
siyauaq aahojdwz

€T'T

aT

Tt

0Tl

(panunuod) syunodde ayj 03 SAI0N



144

8¢ - 8¢ 8T T LT
LT - Va4 (43 T 1T J3410
G - [ - - - sjuana Suisiespun4
9 - 9 9 - 9 3J0M1Je JO 3[es uo 1yoid
0007 0007 0007 0003 0003 0003
|p10L paidlisay paiaLi3saun |elol paLIsay palouisaiun
610Z Y240\ TE buipua anaj 0202 Y24e|\l TE Suipud Jeap SaMIALDY Bulpeil Y0 €7
ZET 44 ocrt €€T - €ET
vo1 - voT 114 - 114" SS1IALIO. 3|EeIJIBYD WOy SWOdUI JBY10
8¢ cr 9T (4" - [ $3s51N0)
0007 0007 0007 0003 0003 0003
|p301 Pa312113s3Y paialiysaiun |elop paidiilsay papLisaiun
6T0Z Y240 TE buipua 1034 0202 Y21eNl TE Suipua Jeap saniAnoe d|qeldey)  ¢°¢
8909 995‘S r{13 L9T'Y 069°€E LLY
699 695 - - - - 1snJ SAIV s,uaydals 1S wou) swodu|
- - - 8 8 - SjUBIS JUBWUIBA0D
- - - Va4 - Vo4 s1asse pajeuoq
V444 9g I/ LTt 9LT 1S saloeda
oIt 06 0z vor ovy v diysiosuods pue suopeuop a3es0dio)
6y TLEY Izt 89LC 86G°C 0LT suonepunoj pue sisnip
0LL (0114 06¢ €49 89% S0¢C Ayunwwod pue sjenpiAlpul wouy suoleuoq
0007 0007 0007 0003 0003 0003
|p301 pa1dlisay paidiisaiun |erop paLsay pausalun

6T0Z Y24DIN TE Bulpua 1034 0202 Yd21eNl T€ m:_u:w Jea) sapesa| pue suoneuoq T°C

awoouj z

AUOSC_.._.COUV sjunodde ayj 0] S910N



117 "JedA Jolid 9y} ul PasoISIp 24N3PUIMXa [B103 BY3 UO 109443 [|BJIAO OU YIIM 1SOD JO UOLIESII0S1eD S,JBSA JUSLIND 103|294 03 PAIRISAJ U3 dAeY saAleledw o)

889/ 9rE9 rET 799'8 S00°L LS9'T
9049 S109 169 T€E'L 9619 SE8 51500 Joddng
TLT S 991 €0¢ 8 S6T 13410
98 IS 3 (174 144 9¢ |endsoH aining
- - - 15 - 1S [V 40} SHY
ozt - ozt voz St 681 1UBWUOJIAUS pue uSisap Jay10
59 It 74 St |4 [44 a11ua) AlUIRIBIA USGNaY
1414 rsc - 2147 144 - SIR1S 3 UNS
V44 LY - 11 11 ) - aJe) [eani)
109°s 109°s - L96°S L96'S - juswuoJIAUS pue udisaq
juswadeuew uoyI3||0)
14 - It 6s - 65 Asanijap swweiSold
Ize 9T s0€ €6¢ - €6¢ «USisag pue suy
51502 poddns Suipnjoul ajqeAed syue.s jerop
286 £33 159 TEET 60S [44]
20z 4 00z €S 1 4] 51502 1Joddng
- - - 60T - 60T Asanijap awwesgold uoneaouu| pmO
084 6C¢€ ISy 69T‘T 80S 199 a|qeAed sjuess |ejol
£9€ 01 L61 6€€ vl S61 sjuess puny [eads Jay10
v - 4 v - 14 sjuess 19Y10
IS I 0s [44 [4 0L JUBWIINIIAI PUB UOLUIBI Jels
Iy 8T 24 65 65 ; (ewaurdIpalA Suipnjoul) [ENASOH S,UR1PIIYD E3S|3YD
- - - Ss SS - Sulaq|jam pue yieay yeis
- - - 0€ 0¢ - a.ed jusyed Joy Juswdinba map
pung asuodsay pidey gT-pIn0)
(eLv) - (eLv) (0€) - (0€) syoRg MM
434 - 43 6 - 6 SjueJ3 youeasal Jay1Q
80T - 80T - - - 99IWWOD Y24easay ulof
uoneaNnp3 pue yoleasay
€91 9 /ST 14 - 14 a|doad Jap|0
(61) (€) (91) 66 66 - saAneniu| suing
8 3 34 ve ) ve 10edw| Si1g a8uey) |lews
8se vET {44 vev 611 SLE 1UaWanoIdWI 9IAIIS PUE UOKIBAOUU|
a.1ed paJsjuad aned Suuanieqg
000F 000F 000F 0003 0003 0003 :9|qeAed sjuein
|p10L pa11i31say padtisaiun leloL paRLIsay papusalun
6T0Z Y240 TE Buipua Jnaj 0202 Y24eIAl TE Bulpua Jeap ainyipuadxa ajqelneyd jo sishieuy  T°g
$3502 Hoddns Suipnjoul ainypuadxa jo sjielaq €

(panunuod) syunodde ayj 03 SAI0N



17

141 L L

065 99¢ [£44

X4 IT or

98T S6 16

€8¢ 09¢ ezr

0007 0007 0007

[[21]] ainypuadxa spunf buisioa
3|qp31I0Y) uo ainyipuadx3

610C Y240IN TE Buipua 1034

286
coc

08/
(52
(TrE)
80T
z/6

000F

|b101

610¢ Yd21bN

TE buipua upa )

uopeJisiuiwpe |eJauan
Pa31d111say

51502 Moddns |ejol

(Z'7 @10U) 51502 D2UBUIDAOD
$1500 9240 434310

51502 uyjels

paidLsalun

TC 6 [4%
9€S LvT 68¢
ve (o) 1
T1¢ 06 11
TOE LYT ST
0003 0003 0003
|exoL ainjipuadxa spuny Suisies
a|geiseyd uo ainyipuadxy
020 Y24\l TE SuUIpud Jedp
(444}
€S
69T‘T
6S
0TT'T
0003
|eloL
020¢ Y2 1eNy

T€ Suipud 1edp

s3sod poddng 1y
ainupuadxa |eyol v

Ayj1oe} Adesayiounwiwi pasueApe Joj Juels Jo yoeq SHIM SIPN[DUL,,

s1503 1oddng

BWaUDIPaN

+009]|0D |eadw|

(DY) 1SN Yyoueasay |00Yy2S [BIIPIIA J9ISUIWISIMN

1SNJJ uolepuno4 SHN |eHdSOH J91SulWISaAN pue eas|ay)

uounsu|

S|enpIAIpU| pue SsUoLNISU| 0} dpeW Sjueln ¢'€

(ponunuod) syunodlde ayj 0} S910N



LY

"(2v8'€CF 6T0T
Y2Je|A TE papua Jeah) 0z0z YoJeN TE papua JeahA syl ul GEETEF 01 parunowe aA0ge ay3 JO 109dSaJ Ul SDWSYIS UOLINQIIIUOI PaUYSP JIPUN S1Yaud( JUSWJL1AJ 4O UOIsIAcId 9yl JO) SUOLINQLIIUOD

¢ L 000023000093

! L 00008300003

! E 000063000083

r i 000°02T3-000°0TTF

i 1 000°0€T3-000°02TF
pueg

saafojdwa fo ‘oN soaAojdwa jo ‘oN

6102 Y2ibiN 020¢ Yd1eNl

TE buipua up3a4 T€ Suipud 1edp

si9Seuew Jouas Jo sjuawaIud uoisuad pue Alejes €'

'SISeq awl} Pa1ewsa Ue uo paledo||e uaaq sey aunypuadxa ‘9|qissod uaaq
10U Sey s1y1 a9y A10321e2 1502 e 01 paingline Aj3oauip usaq sey a4nyipuadxa ‘@1elidoidde ausypn “soARI(qo 21891e41S S,A14BYD YT YHM BUl| Ul pEW US3(Q Sey S150d 1oddns Jo uonedo|e ay L

<r‘
(o]

- T J9Y10

14 S s994 |eSa

13 € 2auednsul Ayjiqel| ,se91snJa|

vT ST S99} Upny

0007 0003

[p10L |eloL

610Z Ys21bN 020¢ Ya1eny

1€ buipua ipag T€ Suipud Jeap $1S0D 9DUBUWIBNOD 'V

AUO_‘..CB.COUV sjunodJde ayj 0] S910N



1514

"|e3dSOY JNO 404 3JOM UDIIS dAL dnbiun B paleald sey ual|nf Jees| ‘puUB|II| JO SIABD |B|DE|S 910WaJ 3y} UIYlM daap pawli4 "ualnf dees| Ag ,spuowelq jsuiede sauois, 3Jom [eUSIp e S| 19sse Je ay |

m‘

EST

o

S

|
|

0003
|ejol

S
(€)
(z1)

0003
aiemyos
19indwo)

S'IC

0's

06

S/

saafojdwa fo ‘oN
610Z Ys1bN

TE buipua 1pa

120°'T

0007
610¢ Y210l
TE buipua 1pa

0st 6102 Y240 TE 10 PIDMIOS P3LIIDI 32UD|Dg
0s 0202 Y2JBIA TE 18 pJemioy paliied aouejeg
- 0207 Y2JBA TE 18 pJemioy paliied aduejeq
° JedA ayy Joy 981ey)
- 6107 1Ay T 18 pJemioy 3ySnouq aduejeg
uonepaidap pazenwnddy
0207 Y2JBA TE 18 pJemioy paliied sduejeq
0s UonEeN|eAas Uo S50
(0ot) 6107 [14dy T 18 pJemioy 3ySnoiq aduejeg
0stT uouEeN|eA Jo 3503 135Sy
0003 $150)
syasse Uy

s13ssy 9|qiSuelu] :s1assy paxi4

"(66L7S¥F 6TOT YoIBIN TE papud

JeaA) €859/ ¢F Sem Q70T YdJeIN TE papua Jeah ay3 4oy syauaq 99Ao|dwa pue uolelawnuUaJ [e10} 1Y ‘|auuosiad Jusawaseuew Ay s,AlJeYD Sy} SJe SI9qUIBW WEead} JUSWISeueW JOJUSS dAY dY |

0'0¢

0'S

08

0L 9dueUY pue uoneJIsIuIWpY
soaAojdwa jo ‘oN Sulsiespuny
020¢ Ya1en ssbiAnde 9|qelieyd

T€ Suipud 1eap

(spousad anndadsau ayy Surinp saaho|dwa Jo saquinu s3elane sy} uo paseq) siaquinN

LyO'T

oL (sowiayas uornqIU0d pauyap) s1S0d suoisudd
9 S$3500 ddUeINSUI [RUOLIEN
188 51500 Auejes
0003

020¢ Ya1en

1€ Suipua Jeap 5150)

$1502 JuawAojdwsa jo sishjeuy '

AGQSCECOUV Sjunodde ayj 03] S9j0N



6t

£9z°ey

£66
ZLEE

(6s£°s)
199°t

0007
610Z Y210\ TE

§94°C

¥s8C

(zg)

(9)
(92)

988°C

o N
wn

v
16L°C

0003
|eloL

<

T

w‘

(zg)

(9)
(92)

o
<

o

%

0003
awdinba pue
sSumy ‘saunixi4

965 €€

(gL'T)
vSvoT
(88€'LT)
19Tty

0003
020C Yo1en T€

uonen|eAal uo uied/sso| 19N
1502 1€ suonlisinboy :ppy

anjeA SulAuied 1e sjesodsiq :5s97
'6T0C |1dY T 3e sy

SJUIWIBAOW JUDWIISOAU|

SjuswilsaAnul jo w_m>_m=<

109 ATMS ‘uopuo 19a.43s uly 8 ‘s,aus1y) Aq 0z0z Adenigad OT 1e se pan|endl 2Jam s}asse Je ay|

15744

9v8C

9v8°C
S
14
18T

o o

0003
sjasse uy

6T0Z Y2JBAl TE € piemioy paliied duejeq
0202 Y2JeAl TE IE piemioy paliied duejeq
020Z YoJB|Al TE 18 pJemJo} paliled aduejeg

Jeah ayy Joy 28iey)
6T0Z [4dy T 18 piemuoy 1ySnolq aouejeq

uoneaidap pajejnwnddy

020Z YoJB|Al TE 18 pJemJo} paliled aduejeg
uopen|eAas uo uieo

Jeah ay3 ui suonippy

6T0Z [4dy T 38 pJemuoy ySnolq aouejeq

uonenjea 1o }s0J 1assy

$13ssy 9|qiSue] :s)}assy paxi4

T'L

(panunuod) syunodde 3yl 01 SA10N



0S

L8
99
Ic
0007
610¢ Y21 TE
9ze - 9c€e
&L - 14
£s¢c - 1374
0007 0007 000F
301 pa1aLisay paiatiysasun

6T0Z Y240\ TE BuIpua 4nag

act

0007
6T0C Y210N TE

(94844

986°L
Iv6°6T
8gee
088°TT

0007
|p30L
610C Y21bN TE

0003
020Z Yd1en TE

L0S - L0S

LS - LS

osv - (0517

0003 0003 0003

|eoL paiusay palouisaiun

020 Yd21elAl T€ Suipus Jeay

JedA auo uiyum anp Suijje} si01qap |eloL
$10193p JaYy10

Swodul panJdoe pue sjuswAedald

:1e3dA auo ulym anp Suijjej sjunowy

$101g3p jO sisAjeuy

oljoppdod Juswisanul ay3 Jo Jed se pjay ysed
sapuadoud jJuawisanu|

SJUBWISAAUI WOy dwodul ssous jo sisAjeuy

S (MN ut pjay) suonnjos |eudip SuiSew| |eunlas pI] SEAISY Ul SJUSWISSAUL UOLIBAOUUI Y} BSH Paisiiun

0003
00T Yd21en T€

SJUBWISAAUL pajejas dwweiSold

"91Ep 199YS d0ue|eq DY} 1B AN|eA JIB} JO 9}BWNSA 153q Ay} S)UasaIdal uonen|ea S|yl 18yl paysies ale saaisni] 9y "UoLBWIOU] Xapul
1DSIAl 9|ge|ieAe Jo 3y8i| ul uonen|eA £T0Z Yl SNSISA %0T A spJemumop panjenas uaaq aney sadadoud |elaJawwo)) "d3ep 193ys adue|eq 9y} 38 dN|BA Jiej JO 91eWnlSa 353 Y3 syuasaldas pue ajeudoidde
sujewas Ajiadoud |elaJaWwwWod-uou 10y uonen|eA ayl eyl paysues ale saaisnd ayi ‘dlwapued 6T-JIAOD Y3 J0 30edwi 3y} wouy Suisiie Ajuielsasun ay3 o 3ySi| Ul 91ep 193Ys aoue|eq dy3 3B suolen|eA asay3

paJapisuod-aJ uineH "/ T0Z Jaqwiaidas O€ 1e se salpueua)} Sunsixa ay3 01 13[gns s3salaiul s,AieyD 3y JO aN|eA 13 JeW 3y} UO Pased 9JaMm suonen|eA asay] "uonip3 Yyig (SJ1y) sioAaninsg passney) jo uon
-njnsu| [eAoy 2y} JO SpJepUB)S UOLIEN|BA Y} U] PUIEIUOD S9I0N SDOUBPINGD PUB SIUSWSILIS 9213IB1d 93U} Y}IM 2dUBPI0IDE Ul /TOZ 4oqwaidas g Uo 471 A3 p|esao Aq panjea-ai sem Aadoad Juswisanul ay

16S°€E

ov0‘T
850°6T
S68°T
86S'TT

0003
|eloL
0Z0C Yd1en TE

oljoj10d Juawisanul ay3 jo Jed se pjay ysed

SE3SJANO P|aY — SPUNJ JUBWISIAUL Ul SJUBWIISIAU]
N Y3 Ul pjay — a8ueydx3 }I01S UO PaISI| SIUBWISIAU|

N dY3 Ul p|ay — saiadoud Juawisanu|

€L

AUOBCB.COUV sjunodde ayj 0] s9l0N



1S

1Z:%3 (tz) (veo‘z) 169°€ S0Z°L
01s L (ov) 343 €95
z9 - (zz) - v8
99 - (1) - 9
[74 - () - 6/
S8 - - S8 -
66 - (1) 001 -
80T - (r1) 69 0S
9zT - (0s) 9T -
LZT - (z) - 62T
LET - (€1) 0ST -
SLT - (91) - 16T
8/T - (€1) - 16T
I1Z (or) (6zt) - 089
9zz - (sT) - Ive
805 zr (696°S) GEST 056V
8vI'T - (s8) £€T'T -
0007 000F 0007 0007 0007
6102 siafsup.j ainypuadxy awoau| 8107
YaIo\ TE jHdy T

9T 0s

Z60°T €6T°T

v86 86

91 ve

z6 144

0007 0003

610Z Y21bN TE

020Z Yd1eN T€

|elor

(0202 Y21\l T€ 1€ spuny /i) sidaYy10
SUv a3

A30|02uQ sewoy]-auuAp

pun4 [eaddy swn|p

AIH Ul eJ3 MaN

pun4 uoneaouu| Ayiuaalen
|eaddy sueis pue uns

pun4 oeipJe) Jauuaf

pun4 yoddns juaned
uoneAIasqQ [ed1uld AlIA

pun4 yoJeasay pJoqJieH

pung uealns 3 v

pund Ajluiaiely usagnay
(po1014359Y) So|e3 JojAeL

2JeD |B21ID

pun4 asuodsay pidey 6T-AINOD

spunj paldulsay T°0T

spuny jo sisAjeuy

SJ01IpPaJd Jayl0

(0663 :6T0T Y24BIN TE) 020Z YdJEIN TE 1€ Sanl|iqel| uoisuad Jo 13adsas ul 06T vF SapPNIUl,

Je3A auo uiyum anp Suijjej s101paId [EIOL

S10}paJd JaY10
«OWODU| P3IIBJBP PUE S[ENIIDY
SJ0}paJd dped]

(1)

JeaA auo ueyl aiow uyum anp Suijjey sjunowy 7'

:1eah auo ulyum anp Suljjey sjunowy  T°6

s101paJd Jo sisAjeuy

6

AUOBCB.COUV sjunodde ayj 0] S910N



[4S]

‘|en1dSoH J91sulWwisSap pue eas|ay) 1e yuawiiedaq Aduagiaw3 ayl 03 syuawanoidwi 404
*1un A30j0ou0 3y} Jo y4om Y3 1oddns o)
Jusawdojanap |euoneusalul pue ‘Suiulely ‘yoJeasal uonenwis Alajimpiw pue 214333sqo Adeuldidsipaninl
92UBJ24U0d AIH Ul B43 MAN V 1oddns o)
$921AJ3S Ajluialew ui syafoad aaneaouul poddns o)
‘|endsoH AMSIaAIUN X3SIIPPIIA ISOM 1B SpJem Juaiiedul s,ualp|iyd 3y} waojsuesy o} jeaddy

‘jun 1eay ayj 1oddns o)

‘syuaned Jo 9oue)SISSe pue 4al|aJ 3y} 104
‘awwesdoud uoneasasqo [edtuld AlH Hoddns o)
‘adl Y1m suiml ojul yoaeasal 104
"S9IIAIIS Y3|eaY |enxaS 1 JuaWdo|aAap Jels pue A|H UO yd4easad Jo4
‘|e}dSOH J91SUIWISIAN pue Bas|ay) 1€ 1un Ajluialew sy 03 sjuswanosdwl 104
‘|lendsoH AusiaAIuN X3S3IPPIIA I1S9M 1€ Juswdinba |eaipaw 104
‘|eNdSOH J91SUIWISIAN PUB BIS|9YD 1B 94BD SAISUIUI [P1BUOSU PUE }jnpe wJojsuel) o) |eaddy
*S9IUNWWO) JNO SSOJIE. 3eauqIno 6T-AIAOD @Y1 Sulinp aJed s|qissod 1599 ay3 apinoid of

uondiiasaq

s0z/ (9v) (rs€‘9) 8LS'S L2708
vee (1v) (9£2) (1183 1€¢
8¢ - (6€) LE ov
a4 - (2) - 4
8v - (o1) 91 w
0s - (0s) 44 [:14
v9 - - ¥9 -

99 - (1) - L9
6/ - (9) - <8
v8 - (06) - 74
741 - (1) - 6¢T
6T 0T 43 - LOT
16T - (1) 4y -

16T - (T1) 414 -

1144 - (62) - 0Lz
089 (v2) (t22) - SL6
056t 6 (665°S) S89 S€8's
0007 0003 0003 0003 0003
0coc siajsuel] w‘_su_—u:mn_xw awodu| 6T0¢C
Ysuo\ TE jndy 1

SUY a3

A30j0ouQ sewoy]-auuApn
pund |eaddy swnp|

AIH Ul BJ3 MaN

pun4 uoneAouu| Ayuiaie|n
|eaddy sieis pue ung

pun4 oeipJe) Jauuaf

pun4 oddns juaned
UuoneAtasqQ |edtut|d AlIA
pun4 yaieasay pioqieH
pung ueAljins ) v

pun4 Aluiaie|\ usagnay
(po1014359Y) So|e3 JojAe L
24e) |eonl)

pung asuodsay pidey 6T-AINOD

puny jo awep

|eloL

(6T0Z Y2JBN TE 2B SPUNy €€) SIBYI0
Asanoq 8i1g uonepunod siead

pun4 juswdojanaq pue Suiuied) Ajiwed 1sag
91e) 9417 0 pu3

|eaddy sueis pue uns

(yo@18UaD) Youeasay piogleH
A30|02uQ sewoy]-auuAp

pund [eaddy swn|p

SUv a3

pun4 poddns juaned

pund jjepm umeq

pung uealins 3 v

pun4 yoJeasay pJoqJieH

(po1014359Y) So|e3 JojAeL

pund Ajluiaiely usagnay

2JeD |B21ID

(panunuod) syunodde 3yl 01 SA10N



“(4eak BUO UIYIM JuBds B4 ||IM SI1Y3) [E3ASOH S,UBIP|IYD BIS|BYD JO 1YdUS] Y] 04 [e3dSOH S,UaJp|Iy) e3s|aY)

‘[endsoH AMSIaAIUN X3SIPPIIA IS/ 404 paleusisap spun4 pun4 [e11dsoH ANSIaAIUN X3SI|PPIIA ISOM
JeaA auo ulyum paljdde aq |jim 9say] "S193[04d SHE SNOLIBA JO) SDUBAPE Ul PAAISIAJ SpUNn4 SaAJSaY 109[04d SUY
‘(saeaA uay ueyl asow) wual Suo| ay3 Joy p|ay os|e
S| 1| "S9AJDSDJ 944 INILISUOD 10U S0P 240343y} pue 3|gesijeas Ajlpead Jou si 3| ‘|eudsoy ayi punode pue ul Aejdsip uo 1ie Aq pajuasalday S19SSY MY
*(s4eaA ua) uey) asow) wuLI-3u0| BY3 Ul sarAnde s,Ajuey) 9yl Joj Alpinbi| pue Alljigels spinosd 01 PaISIAUL S19SSY |jeyde) wus) Suo
puny yaea jo asodind pue ainjeu aya jo uondiasag puny jo aweN
0Lv'LE £66 v (£02°2) 986 259°L€ spunf pajoiisaiuf [piol
ocy i ETET (165°T) res Lot SanIasal 3314
0S0°LE £66 (£92°T) (919) S6€ SysLE
ITET - 422 (1sv) i 8821 (£°0T 230U) Spunf pa1oubisap 42430
8T - - (sz) €€ 09 puny |0)dSOH AUSIaAIUN XaSAIPPIN 1S9
9T , - - - } 9T SaNIasaJ 193[0.d 11y
106°'c ) - - ) 106°C S3955Y 1Y
v08°ce £66 (6££°T) (06) - 08Z°se j031d) wia) 6uoT
spunf pajpubisaqg
000F 000F 0007 0007 000F 000F
610C suibn siafsuni| ainyipuadxy awoau| 810z
YIIDN TE judy
aoup|og doub|bg
L60VE (S8£°T) 1z ((744) YET'T 0LY'LE spuny pajLIIsaIun |eol
9T - L6 (£602) 12L oy S9NJISDI 9944
180'V€ (58£°T) (156) (9%9) 1334 0S0°LE
59T - [4°] (Tv9) (3474 TIET (€°0T @10U) Spuny pajeusisap JaYl0
- - (81) - - 81 pund |exdsoH AMsIaAIUN X3SIPPIIA ISOM
- - (91) - - 91 S9AJDSAI 103[0ud (1Y
¥06°C (8v) 15 - - 106°C $19SSY ‘1Y
T16'6C (eL'T) (050°T) (sot) - v08°zE lended wus) Suol
spunjy pajeusisag
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
0coc sulep siajsuel] ain)ipuadxy awoou| 6102
YaIe 1€ |dy T
uejeg ajuejeg spuny pajpuisaiun ¢'0T

AUOBCB.COUV sjunodde ayj 0] S910N



|p30L

LIET 413 (z5p) 413 88Z'1 (6T0Z Y240 TE 30 SPUNf ZIT) 13430
749 ITT (98¢) ST 61/ A104qIT DIIPIN
9z . . ) 9z pun4 ABojolpwanH
£€ ) ) 3 ce ABojoipin)
vE ) (@) € €€ pun{ pISay1sabuy 31413150
ve - (1) - [ AUIZION
€ B (v) I 8¢ pun4 Aipsing suing
8¢ ) (v) £ s€ Y1|PaH [bNXas Jof 243U3) UOPUOT M
8¢ I (€) I 6¢ pun{ pippA uosuyor uoy
5y B (€) 5¢ 114 pun4 pippn Buip uoibuisuayl
6v ) (1) . 0s diysmoj|a4 Yapasay suing
55 - ) Is 4 392435 UP3Q 95
89 ) (€€) 0¢ Iz 3J1U3) 31bnppIbISod [DUASOH MBI
88 B (s) 5 88 pun4 AbojoyipdoisiH sawpby 1S3 YIION
6 . (€) € 56 punf uogpaouu|
v6 - (9) 00T -

000F 000F

610C 000F 000F 0007 8102

Y2IDN TE siafsup.al ainypuadx3y awoou| Judy T

aoup[og doupjbg

S9T°1 z8 (tirs) £Iv TIET [ezoL
8¢9 L8 (Lvv) 9z€ 799 (0Z0Z YoJBIN TE 38 SPUNy pTT) SI2YI0
6T - - - 6T pun4 Ajluswy yeis Aey-x
61 (s) (z1) T 13 Anuisre
61 - - T 8T Hun aJe) 1sealg
9¢ - - - 9t Adeaqr [ea1paIN
8¢ - (T) 1¢ 8 pun4 a11ua) Ja|qoy aJed Aeq
6¢ - (3) - 143 pun4 eisayisaeuy 2141915q0
0¢ - (€) - €€ pun{ ASojolewaey
0¢ - (6) T 8¢ pun4 Alesing suing
8¢ - (€) € 8¢ Yl|eaH |BNX3S 0} 313U UOPUOT ‘M
8y - (1) - 6t pun4 piepn Suipn uoluisuayl
0s - (sv) LT 89 192115 uea 95
89 - (T) 14 SS diysmol|a4 yoJeasay suing
L9 - (£) 6¢C 14 pun4 pJep\ uosuyor uoy
S8 - (€) - 38 2J1ud) 3enpesd1sod |eudsoH MR
16 - (v) - S6 pun4 ASojoyiedolsiH sawey] 1ssp Y1oN €°0T
0003 0007 000F 0003 0003

0coc siajsues] ainyipuadxy awoou| 6102

YoJe\ 1€ ndy T

duejeg uejeg

(panunuod) syunodde 3yl 01 SA10N



SS

'020T Y2JeIN TE papua Jeah ay3 4o 6TOZ Y2JBIA TE PapUa Jeah ay3 Jo Jaylla uj uasiie sey agieyd
Xe} ON "Z66T 10V Suleo ajgeasiey) Jo uolexe| 9Gzs pue 88T 1Y Saxe] uoielodio) pue awodu| §0GS UM Suljjes suleS pue awodul Jo uopexel wody 1dwaxa Ajjenualod st +A\D ‘AlJeyd pataisial e sy

uopexej

‘uonesjuesJo 1eyy 1oddns Aj3oaJ1p 40 Aj30241pul JBYHS SIUNOIIE Y3 Ul SUOLIBSUEI] JO ¥|Ng 3Y3 “IsnJ] dyl 1yauaq 01 sI Alldeyd ayi 4o 303[qo |edioulid 8yl sy "UOSISpUSH e[aSuy pue ueyeueys zi7 ‘Yseo YIIN
‘spepn A9 ‘Uudd 907 :540303J1Q PJeOg ISNJL 9AL PN[Ul PUEB ISNJ] UOLEPUNO4 SHN [EHASOH J2ISUIWISIA PUB B3S|ayD 3yl Aq paleulwou aJe s991sNnJ] JO JOGWINU B ‘UOLBII0SSY JO SIILY S,+MD Japun

suonoesues) Aued paiejay
"(IINF :6T0T Y24BIA TE 01 4BIA) 0Z0T Y2JBIAl TE 03 JedA syl Sulinp suosiad pa1dauuo0d pue S991snJ| WoJy PaAISdaL 249M QT ZF JO suoneuoq
(16523 - 6T0OC Y24BIN TE papua Jeah) g9/ 23 8unsod 0z0g YaJelNl TE papua Jeah ay) ul 1no uayel sem aduelnsu| Ajluwspu| a93snal

(££T3F - 6TOT Y21BIN T€E
papua Jeah) 0Z0Z Y2JeN TE papu JeaA ay) uj 9915NJ3 U0 01 PISINQWIIRL 9J9M 7/ €F J0 sasuadx3 “(JINF - 6TOZ Ya4e T€ Suipua Jeah) 00z Yd24elA T€ Suipua Jeah ay) ul pied sem uonesaunwal 931snJl oN

suonodesues} suosiad Pa3123uuod pue a3lisna|

'syualdioas 03 payLlou aJe syueld uaym 393ys due|eq ay3 Ul pasiugodal aq ||IM PaWILUOD 30U Ing Pa1a8pNng SIUSWWWOD o) Sal|Iqel] *}9ays adue|eq ayl Ul papn|oul uaaq
dABY Sall|Iqel| 3UeJS JUaJInd 3y} JO ||V "(SUON -6TOZ Y2JBIAl TE PapUd JeahA) 0Z0T YdJBIN TE PAPUS JedA SIY3 SIUSWIWWOD ou sey A}Jeyd ay3 ‘GT 930U U] palels SUaWHWWOoD 3sea| Jo uondaoxa ay3 Y

sanijiqel] pue sjuUaWHWWOo)

'saeaA any Japun ui dn juads aq pjnom spuny eyl aedppue pjnom am ng ‘@inpuadxa jo Suiwn 10exa ayi 19ipald 03 9|qissod jou Si 3

‘Aey-x ul saniuswe yeis 1oddns of pund Alluswy yeis Aey-x
‘Hun Ajuaaiew xasa|ppliA 1S9/ 9y 1oddns of Ajuiaie|n

‘Hun 24e) 1seasg ay3 1oddns o)
‘Adeaq| |ea1paw xasa|ppIAl 1S9 9y 1oddns o)
'243U3) 43]q0y 3Yy3 Moddns o

"BIS9YISOBUE D1U193SCO0 0} PI1E[3J DJBJOM IS PUB UOLEINPS ‘YdJeasal Joddns o)

‘syuaned pue Jeis ASojolewsaey oddns o)

'S92UDJ94U02 JO 3500 pue Sujuiely yeis Joddns of

‘aseyasnd uawdinba pue uoneanps pue 3uluiesy oddns o)

‘3uipn uoiduisuay oy oddns o)

"J1U1D Y}BaY |BNX3S 393J31S Uea( 95 ay3 jo uopesado ay3 1oddns of
‘yaJeasad suing 1oddns o)

‘p4ep) uosuyor uoy oddns o)

Juswdinba jo aseyaund Suipnjoul SSLHIALOE [BUOLIEINPS J4e1S
's221A19s ASojoyredoisiH

punj yoea jo asodind pue ainjeu ay3 jo uondudsag

1uUn aJe) isealq
AJeaqry |ed1paN

pun4 aJ43ua) J3|qoy aJ4e) Aeq

pun4 eisayisaeuy 21419150

pun4 ASojojewaeH

pun4 Alesing suing

Y3|eaH |BNX3S 40} 943USD UOPUOT ‘M

pun4 paepn Suipy uoiduisua)y|

192115 UeaQ 95

diysmoj|a4 yoseasay suing

pun4 pJepp Uosuyor uoy

2J3ua) 91enpesSisod |eHdsoH MR

pun4 A3ojoyledolsiH sawey] 1S9\ YHON

punj jo aweN

14

€1

€T

(A4’

T

a

T

AUQSC_.._.COUV sjunodde ayj 0] S910N



99

*TF Su1paadxa 10u paJinbai g Aew se syunowe se yons dn Suipuim uo Auedwod ay3 Jo sanljiqel|

J0 S13SSE 19U 9y} 03 3INIIIU0D 03 JaquaW Yoea Ag Supjersapun ue 03 13(gns ‘payiwli| si siaquiaw ayi 4o Aljigel| ay3 Ajjusnbasuod pue [eaided aleys e Suiney jou ‘9ajuesend Aq paywi| st Auedwod ay |

Aupqey) siaquiay

‘apew ua3q sey uoisiroid ou Ajuipiodde pue suoernodau asaysy 4o 3 nsaJ e se Ayed Jayis Aq ajqeAed

3¢ 1ySiw junowe Aue J| aujwJalap 01 3|qIssod jou si 3| Juasaid 1y "TAS ‘UOpuOT] ‘@ienbs Juaduip g8 1e Ayadoud syl e asea| ays jo uonelasdialul ay3 Suipiesas Jueual ayy yum suopenosau ul st Ayueyd ayl

S

- <

0007
610Z Y210\ TE

awdinba 33y0

88¢

™

0003
0c0C Y2 1eN T€

96
96

0007
610Z Y210\ TE

Ayiadoad

96

96

0003
020C Y21eN T€

juawdinba 2oyjo pue s3uip|iNg pue pue| 04 — SIEA SAL 03 OM} UIYHM
juswdinba 22yjo pue sSulp|ing pue pue| Joj — JeaA auo Uyl

1SMOJ|04
SE aNp |[e} YdIYM SIUSWIIWWOD 3Sed| |enuue SuImo||o) 3yl pey AyueyD ay3 a1ep 19ays adue|eq ay3 Iy

Sjuawiwwod asea]

AUQSC_.._.COUV sjunodde ayj 0] S910N

LT

9T

ST



020 3315 6600
charity@cwplus.org.uk

Registered with
FUNDRAISING
E1Y FR) idiiess

CW+ is the charity of Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

CWPLUS Registered Charity No.1169897

NHS

NHS Foundation Trust

‘( x )’ Chelsea and Westminster Hospital
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